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Brad Blower

RELMAN & DANE PLLC
1225 19" Street, N.W., Suite 600
Washington, D.C. 20036-2456

Brad Blower’s practice includes advising financial services companies and non-
profit organizations on fair lending, consumer protection, privacy and civil rights issues.
He has extensive experience not only working with clients on compliance issues, but also
as a litigator and independent investigator. Mr. Blower currently represents the City of
Baltimore in its Fair Housing Act case against Wells Fargo Bank. Baltimore is the first
city to have sued a mortgage lender for the injuries caused by foreclosures and vacancies
resulting from the lender’s predatory and discriminatory practices. Mr. Blower has also
brought and settled numerous cases brought by fair housing groups against mortgage
lenders for redlining Native-American and minority communities and persons with
disabilities through their restrictive underwriting policies.

Prior to joining Relman & Dane, Mr. Blower was an assistant director and senior
attorney in the Financial Practices Division of the Federal Trade Commission’s Bureau of
Consumer Protection. At the FTC, Mr. Blower was responsible for case and policy
management in the areas of lending and financial and online privacy. He also managed
the FTC’s enforcement of credit, anti-discrimination and privacy statutes. Prior to his
tenure at the FTC, Mr. Blower was a trial attorney at the Department of Justice’s
Commercial Litigation Section working on director and officer liability and corporate
governance issues. Mr. Blower has also served as a lecturer at the University of Otago in
New Zealand and a litigation associate at Squire, Sanders and Dempsey. He is a frequent
speaker at conferences on compliance and litigation issues.

Mr. Blower received his law degree from Duke University and his undergraduate

degree from Yale University. Mr. Blower is licensed to practice in Georgia and the
District of Columbia.
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Sanford Shatz
Assistant General Counsel
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Bank of America Corporation

4500 Park Granada, CA7-910-01-03

818-225-3206
818-225-4024 FAX
Sandy.Shatz@BankofAmerica.com

Since August 2008, Mr. Shatz is a managing litigator responsible for overseeing
mortgage cases filed against Bank of America Corporation and its related entities in all
50 states. He works with outside counsel and Bank of America’s various client groups on
litigation matters brought against the company.

From June 1998 to August 2008, Mr. Shatz supervised the California In-House
Litigation Group at Countrywide Home Loans, Inc. The California In-House Litigation
Group directly represented the company in matters filed in the California state and
federal courts. Mr. Shatz worked directly with the company’s client division, managed
the in-house group’s case load, and appeared in court in defense of and to prosecute the
company’s claims.

From 1987 to 1998 Mr. Shatz worked for Cameron & Dreyfuss, and Rutan &
Tucker, representing clients in business and real estate related litigation.
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Andrew L. Sandler
Partner

BuckleySandler LLP

1250 24th Street, NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20037

T. 202-349-8001

F. 202:349-8080
asandler@buckleysandler.com

Andrew L. Sandler, Co-Chair of BuckleySandler LLP, legal counsel to the financial services
industry with offices in Washington D.C., Los Angeles and New York and Chief Executive
Officer of Corporate Risk Advisors LLC, is a strategic advisor to many of the nation’s top
financial services companies.

Mr. Sandler's law practice specializes in regulatory enforcement, litigation, and compliance for
financial services companies including banks and thrifts, mortgage and consumer finance
companies, and credit card issuers. He represents these and other financial services companies in
examinations and acquisition application reviews and civil and criminal investigations by federal
and state enforcement and bank regulatory agencies. He also often represents clients in class
action and other litigation matters. As Chief Executive Officer of Corporate Risk Advisors, Mr.
Sandler leads a multi disciplinary firm that provides consulting, compliance, and transaction
advisory assistance to the financial services industry. Corporate Risk Advisor's service offerings
include: Business Consulting, Compliance Consulting, Crisis Management, Monitoring Services,
and Deal Arrangement.

Mr. Sandler actively participates in community and professional organizations. He is President
of the Financial Literacy Foundation, serves on the National Board of Directors of The Wellness
Community and the Board of the Kolar Charitable Foundation of BuckleySandler LLP. He is
also a member of the Parents Council of Tulane University. Mr. Sandler has had many
leadership roles in the Litigation and Business Law Sections of the American Bar Association
including Chair of the Consumer and Civil Rights Committee and Vice Chair of the Banking
Law Committee.
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July

D.C. Federal Court Upholds HUD RESPA Rule Amending Disclosure of Yield Spread Premiums. On July
29, the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia held that the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development's (HUD) recently-promulgated rule regarding the disclosure of yield spread
premiums on the Good Faith Estimate (the "Rule to Simplify and Improve the Process of Obtaining
Mortgages and Reduce Customer Settlement Costs" - hereinafter, the Rule) is not arbitrary and
capricious under the Administrate Procedures Act (APA). Nat'l Ass'n of Mortg. Bankers, Inc. v. Donovan,
No. Civ. A. 08-2208, 2009 WL 2259085 (D.D.C. July 29, 2009). This case arose after the National
Association of Mortgage Bankers, Inc. (NAMB) challenged the Rule as arbitrary and capricious under the
APA because (i) HUD failed to supply a reasoned explanation for why the Rule had asymmetric
disclosure requirements for brokers and direct lenders, (ii) HUD failed to consider reasonable alternatives
to the Rule and explain why it rejected them, and (iii) HUD substantially relied on data to formulate the
Rule that it never produced for public comment. The court rejected each of NAMB's claims. First, the
court held that HUD provided several adequate explanations for the Rule's asymmetric disclosure
requirements. HUD explained that the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA) only requires the
disclosure of all charges imposed "in connection with the settlement" and that, because the premiums a
direct lender receives on the secondary market are separate from any settlement-related costs, RESPA
does not mandate their disclosure. HUD also noted that direct lenders cannot disclose the premiums that
they may receive on the secondary market because those premiums are unknown at settlement. Finally,
HUD cited consumer testing data demonstrating that asymmetric disclosures did not create a statistically
significant anti-broker bias. Addressing the NAMB's second claim, the court found that HUD adequately
considered possible alternatives to the Rule because HUD had (i) studied various alternatives for six
years, and (ii) examined the feasibility of alternatives through seven separate rounds of consumer testing.
Addressing the NAMB's third claim, the court found that any unpublished data HUD relied on in finalizing
the Rule was "supplementary data" of a type that prior courts have found acceptable under the APA. As a
result, the court granted HUD's motion for summary judgment. For a copy of the opinion, please see
http://www.buckleysandler.com/NAMB_v_Donovan.pdf.

FHA Announces Loan Madification Program. On July 30, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) issued Mortgagee Letter 2009-23 to implement the FHA-Home Affordable
Modification Program (FHA-HAMP), which permits defaulted FHA mortgagors to obtain a loan
modification to permanently reduce their monthly payments. In many respects, the FHA-HAMP program
mirrors the federal Making Home Affordable (MHA) modification program available to non-FHA borrowers
(for a description of MHA, please see InfoBytes, Mar. 6, 2009). For example, FHA-HAMP has similar
eligibility requirements, including that mortgagors must have a front-end debt-to-income ratio of greater
than 31 percent and a back-end debt-to-income ratio of less than 55 percent. In addition, the servicer
must obtain a Hardship Affidavit from every mortgagor and co-mortgagor seeking an FHA-HAMP.
Likewise, a mortgagor seeking a permanent modification in FHA-HAMP must successfully complete a
three-month trial payment plan. Notably, FHA-HAMP is only available if the mortgagor does not already
qualify for the existing FHA loss mitigation alternatives of special forbearance, loan modification, and
partial claims (in that priority order).

Under FHA-HAMP, a borrower's monthly mortgage payment is permanently reduced through the use of a
partial claim, which defers repayment of principal through an interest-free subordinate mortgage that is
deferred until the first mortgage is paid off. The maximum partial claim amount cannot exceed 30 percent
of the unpaid principal balance as of the date of default. The principal deferment amount is limited to an
amount that will bring the borrower's total monthly payment to 31 percent of the borrower's gross monthly
income. Servicers are eligible for incentives of up to $1250 for each FHA loan modified under the
program. If the borrower does not successfully complete the trial payment plan, the mortgagee must
pursue other loss mitigation options prior to commencing or continuing a foreclosure. The participation
guidelines are available at http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-
23mlatach.doc. For a copy of the press release, please see
http://www.hud.gov/news/release.cfm?content=pr09-137.cfm&CFID=19139199&CFTOKEN=33214164.
For a copy of the Mortgagee Letter, please see
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-23ml.doc.
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Treasury Announces Additional Incentives for HAMP Modifications. On July 31, the U.S. Department of
the Treasury (Treasury) issued a Supplemental Directive for its Home Price Decline Protection (HPDP)
Program -- a $10 billion dollar component of the Home Affordable Modification Program (HAMP). Under
the HPDP Program, servicers will receive additional incentive payments - beyond those generally
available under HAMP -- for modifications of loans securing properties in areas with depressed housing
prices where investors are concerned prices will continue to fall. The amount of the incentive payments
will be based on (i) an estimate of the cumulative projected home price decline over the next year in the
local market in which the related mortgaged property is located, (ii) the unpaid principal balance of the
mortgage prior to modification under HAMP, and (iii) the mark-to-market loan-to-value ratio of the
mortgage loan based on the unpaid balance of the mortgage loan. Mortgage loans that are owned or
guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac are not eligible for the HPDP incentive payments. Only HAMP
loan modifications initiated after September 1, 2009 are eligible for HPDP payments. For a copy of the
press release, please seehttp://www.financialstability.gov/latest/tg_07312009.html. For a copy of the
Supplemental Directive, please see http://www.financialstability.gov/docs/press/SupplementalDirective7-

31-09.pdf.

August

Administration Releases Servicer Performance Report for Loan Modification Program. On August 4, the
Obama Administration released its first monthly Servicer Performance Report in connection with the
federal Making Home Affordable (MHA) loan modification program. According to the Administration,
servicer performance in the program has been "uneven," and the Administration has requested servicers
to increase participation in the program to a cumulative 500,000 trial modifications started by November
1, 2009; this increase would double the performance of the initial five months of the program. The
Administration and members of Congress have recently made several attempts to increase participation
in the MHA. On July 9, Treasury Secretary Geithner and Housing and Urban Development Secretary
Donovan wrote to CEOs of participating servicers to improve performance in the MHA. On July 10,
Representatives Barney Frank (D-MA) and Christopher J. Dodd (D-CT) sent a joint letter to the heads of
the federal banking regulatory agencies to request an inquiry into subordinate-lien loans being carried on
the balance sheets of mortgage servicers in order to increase participation in the MHA (reported in
InfoBytes, July 17, 2009). On July 28, several Senior Administration Officials conducted a face-to-face
meeting with servicer executives. The Administration has also asked Freddie Mac to develop a "second
look" process to audit MHA modification applications that have previously been declined. For a copy of
the press release, please see http://www.treas.gov/press/releases/tq252.htm. For a copy of the report,
please see http://www.treas.gov/press/releases/docs/MHA public_report.pdf.

FFIEC Releases Statement to Stress "Responsible” Loss Mitigation Activities. On August 6, the members
of the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council released a statement to reiterate support for
financial institutions to continue "responsible" loss mitigation activities. In particular, the statement
indicates that servicers of first and subordinate liens on the same property should pursue loan
modifications where appropriate, regardless of the potential negative impact on one or more of the other
liens. Specifically, ownership interest in the subordinate lien cannot be a consideration when deciding
whether a loan modification is appropriate - that is, where the modification would produce a greater
anticipated recovery on that loan than not modifying the loan. Finally, the statement reminds servicers
that they have an obligation to act in the best interests of the owners or investors of the loans that they
service, and to act in accordance with the terms of the servicing contract. According to the statement, if a
servicer fails to modify a subordinate lien loan that would allow for a greater recovery to investors,
regardless of the effect on the first lien loan, the servicer may breach its obligations to the owner/investor.
For a copy of the statement, please see http://www.ffiec.gov/press/pr080609.htm.

HUD Publishes FAQs on Revised RESPA Rule. In early August, the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) published responses to "Frequently Asked Questions" regarding its 2008
amendments (fully effective January 1, 2010) to Regulation X, the Real Estate Settlement Procedures
Act's (RESPA) implementing regulation. The new guidance, presented in the form of 89 questions and
answers, addresses various aspects of the revised RESPA rule, including the delivery of a written list of
settlement service providers to consumers, the changed circumstances re-delivery rule, the completion of
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the GFE and HUD-1/1A, and the electronic delivery of required disclosures. For a copy of the FAQs,
please see http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/ramh/res/fagfinalrev3.pdf. For a copy of the press release,
please see http://www.hud.gov/news/release.cfm?content=pr09-

153.cfm&CFID=21735342& CFTOKEN=67074071. The FAQs have been revised several times. For the
latest version, please see http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/ramh/res/resparulefags.pdf.

Louisiana Federal Court Dismisses RESPA Violation Claim in Absence of Fee-Splitting Arrangement. On
August 10, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana declined to hold a lender and a title
insurance and settlement services provider liable for violating Section 8(b) of the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act (RESPA) after finding that the defendants did not actually split any of the settlement
service fees contested by the plaintiff borrowers. Freeman v. Quicken Loans, Inc., No. 08-1626, 2009 WL
2448033 (E.D. La. Aug. 10, 2009). In Freeman, the borrowers alleged that the defendants violated
RESPA and Louisiana law by, among other things, (i) charging a loan discount fee, but failing to provide a
corresponding interest rate reduction, and (ii) charging an appraisal fee that was improperly split between
the defendants. In granting summary judgment in favor of the defendants, the court agreed with
defendants that the borrowers' RESPA claims failed as a matter of law because the defendants provided
evidence that they did not split or otherwise share the contested loan discount and appraisal fees-instead,
the lender received and retained the loan discount fee, and the title insurance and settlement services
provider received and retained the appraisal fee. According to the court, Section 8(b) of RESPA
unambiguously requires "an allegation that the challenged fees have been split in some fashion." The
court's decision stands at odds with decisions from the Second and Eleventh Circuits holding that a single
service provider can violate Section 8(b) of RESPA (but is in line with decisions from the Fourth, Seventh,
and Eighth Circuits). Regarding the borrowers' state law breach of contract and quasi-contract claims, the
court found that the invalidity of the plaintiffs' claims under Section 8(b) of RESPA required that their state
law claims be similarly dismissed. For a copy of the opinion, please see
http://www.buckleysandler.com/Freeman_v_Quicken Loans.pdf.

Oregon Passes Loan Modification, Foreclosure Legislation. Oregon Governor Ted Kulongoski signed two
bills, H.B. 2191 and S.B. 628, pertaining to loan modifications and foreclosures. H.B. 2191 expands
Oregon law regulating debt consolidation companies to include the regulation of "debt management
services" - including services in connection with loan modifications. Under H.B. 2191, a debt
management service is any activity done for consideration where a person (i) receives or offers to receive
funds from a consumer for the purpose of distributing the funds among the consumer's creditors in full or
partial payment of the consumer's debts, (ii) improves or offers to improve a consumer's credit record,
credit history or credit rating, (iii) modifies or offers to modify the terms and conditions of an existing loan
or obligation, or (iv) obtains or attempts to obtain a concession from a creditor including, but not limited to,
a reduction in the principal, interest, penalties or fees associated with a debt. Among other requirements,
debt management service providers must (i) register with the Oregon Department of Consumer and
Business Services, (ii) post a surety bond of at least $10,000, and (iii) adhere to certain fee limitations.

S.B. 628 requires mortgage creditors to send borrowers a notice whenever a trustee records a notice of
default on property subject to a residential trust deed. The required notice must include a form that a
borrower may use to request a loan modification. Additionally, S.B. 628 provides the borrower with up to
30 days from when the trustee signs a notice of default to request a loan modification, during which time
the trustee cannot initiate foreclosure proceedings. If the borrower opts to pursue a loan modification, the
creditor has up to 45 days to approve or deny the request and cannot initiate foreclosure proceedings
until a final decision has been made regarding the modification request. Both hills became effective
immediately on passage. However, S.B. 628's loan modification provisions become effective September
29, 2009 and are scheduled for repeal January 2, 2012. For a copy H.B. 2191, please see
http://www.leg.state.or.us/09reg/measpdf/hb2100.dir/hb2191.en.pdf. For a copy of S.B. 628, please see
http://www.leg.state.or.us/09reg/measpdf/sb0600.dir/sb0628.en.pdf.

California AG Orders 386 Mortgage Foreclosure Consultants to Register, Post $100,000 Bond. On
August 12, California Attorney General Edmund G. Brown Jr. ordered 386 mortgage foreclosure
consultants to either register with the Office of the Attorney General within ten days and post a $100,000
bond or otherwise explain why they are not required to do so. Under California's recently-enacted
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foreclosure consultant law, mortgage foreclosure consultants must register with the California Attorney
General. Failure to do so may result in imprisonment for up to one year and fines ranging from $1,000 to
$25,000 per violation. Attorney General Brown also ordered 27 foreclosure consultants to substantiate
certain claims made by the consultants in online or direct mail advertisements, and unveiled a new
website for consumers (http://ag.ca.gov/loanmod) which provides tips to avoid loan modification fraud,
allows consumers to determine if a company is registered, and makes it easier to file complaints. In
addition, the State Bar of California has announced that it has obtained the resignation of two lawyers
and filed charges against a third lawyer allegedly involved in loan modification scams. For a copy of the
California Attorney General's press release, please see
http://ag.ca.gov/newsalerts/release.php?id=1780&. For a copy of the State Bar of California's press
release, please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA Bar_081409.pdf.

New York Attorney General Sues Foreclosure Rescue Company. On August 13, Attorney General
Andrew M. Cuomo announced a lawsuit against American Modification Agency, Inc. and its owner in
connection with the company's mortgage foreclosure rescue service business. The complaint alleges that
the defendants (i) failed to obtain loan modifications for a vast majority of its customers, (ii) illegally
charged customers up-front fees, (iii) grossly exaggerated its success rate, made false promises about its
ability to save customers' homes, underestimated the amount of time it takes to achieve a loan
modification, and misrepresented that the company is a law office and that attorneys work on customers'
files, (iv) made false guarantees of "100%" customer service, (v) made false and misleading advertising
statements, (vi) failed to include required legal disclosures in customer contracts, (vii) provided
detrimental advice to customers (e.g., recommended that customers stop making monthly mortgage
payments, ignore lender communications, and avoid consulting with non-profit housing counseling
agencies), and (viii) failed to provide Spanish-speaking consumers Spanish-language contracts when
required by law. Attorney General Cuomo previously announced his intention to sue the defendants on
June 9. For a copy of the press release, please see
http://www.oag.state.ny.us/media_center/2009/aug/aug13b_09.html.

New York Federal Court Finds No Subject Matter Federal Jurisdiction in Countrywide Mortgage-Backed
Securities Case. On August 14, the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York held that a
putative class action filed by mortgage-backed securities investors against Countrywide Financial
Corporation and related entities (Countrywide) is not within federal subject matter jurisdiction. Greenwich
Fin. Servs. Distressed Mortg. Fund 3, LLC v. Countrywide Fin. Corp., No. 08 Civ. 11343, 2009 WL
2499149 (S.D.N.Y. Aug. 14, 2009). In this case, investors filed suit against Countrywide in December
2008 after the company agreed to modify thousands of loans in a settlement with several state attorneys
general. Such loan modifications typically reduce the amount of interest and fees paid to investors over
the life of the loans. Accordingly, most pooling and servicing agreements for mortgage-backed securities
contain provisions that restrict a servicer's ability to modify loans. The investors are not contesting
Countrywide's authority to modify the mortgage loans, but claim instead that Countrywide breached its
contractual obligation to repurchase modified loans. In the pending litigation, Bank of America, which took
over the servicing of Countrywide's loans upon acquiring the company in 2008, argued that the "safe
harbor" provision of the Helping Families Save Their Home Act of 2009 (the Home Act) overrides any
such contractual obligations by protecting mortgage loan servicers from liability to investors for lost
revenue caused by loan modifications. The investors filed the underlying action in the New York State
Supreme Court. Bank of America sought to remove the suit to federal court, and the investors moved to
remand shortly thereafter. Bank of America argued that federal jurisdiction was appropriate, among other
things, because the Truth in Lending Act, as amended by the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of
2008 (HERA) and the Home Act, is a necessary element of the investors' claim. The court rejected this
argument, finding that (i) there is no necessary federal element to the investors' claim and (ii) there is no
legislative intent behind HERA or the Home Act to confer federal jurisdiction in such a case. The court
also found that the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 (CAFA) did not allow for federal jurisdiction
because the claim fell under a CAFA exception for cases that solely involve a claim that "relates to the
rights, duties, and obligations relating to or created by or pursuant to any security." As a result, the court
determined that the breach of contract claim properly resided in state court jurisdiction. The court did not
address the question of whether the Home Act's safe harbor immunizes Countrywide from the lawsuit.
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For a copy of the opinion, please see
http://www.buckleysandler.com/Greenwich v _Countrywide 081809.pdf.

FTC Settles Allegations Against Mortgage Foreclosure Rescue Company. On August 24, the Federal
Trade Commission (FTC) announced a settlement with Stephanie Dietschy, Daren Dietschy, and United
Home Savers, LLC (collectively, United Home) regarding allegations that United Home falsely promised
to halt and reverse foreclosures for homeowners in violation of the FTC Act. According to the FTC, United
Home charged clients facing foreclosure $1,200 and promised to fully refund the money if United Home
was unable to save the client's home foreclosure. Under the settlement, United Homes is (i) required to
pay a $4.1 million fine, which will be suspended when client fees totaling $21,694 are returned, (ii) barred
from selling information they obtained about clients, (iii) barred from misrepresenting information to future
clients about the likelihood of reversing or stopping foreclosure, their past success with foreclosure
rescue efforts, the number of satisfied customers and customer complaints, the terms of any refund or
guarantee, and their rating by the Better Business Bureau, and (iv) ordered to consent to record-keeping
and reporting provisions to allow the FTC to monitor compliance with the settlement. For a copy of the
settlement, please see http://www.ftc.gov/os/caselist/0723251/090824unitedhomestippi.pdf. For a copy of
the press release, please see http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/08/homesavers.shtm.

Florida Attorney General Sues Mortgage Foreclosure Rescue Services Company. On August 21, Florida
Attorney General Bill McCollum sued a mortgage foreclosure rescue services company, JPB Consulting,
Inc. (of Kissimmee, FL), and its president for allegedly charging illegal up-front fees for foreclosure relief
services that the company allegedly did not actually provide. The lawsuit seeks (i) the dissolution of the
company, (ii) a permanent injunction against the defendants from charging illegal up-front fees and failing
to provide advertised services, and (iii) civil penalties of $15,000 per violation, full victim restitution, and
reimbursement for the cost of the investigation and litigation. For a copy of the press release, please see
http://www.buckleysandler.com/FL_AG 082109.pdf.

September

HUD lIssues New Appraisal Standards for FHA-Insured Mortgages. On September 18, the Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) issued three Mortgagee Letters (ML 09-28, ML 09-29, and ML
09-30) addressing appraiser independence, appraisal portability, and appraisal validity periods. ML 09-28
provides new appraisal requirements for Federal Housing Administration (FHA) insured mortgages and
reaffirms existing policy on FHA requirements regarding appraiser independence and geographic
competence. The new requirements, which become effective January 1, 2010, prohibit mortgage brokers
and commission-based lender staff from participating in the appraisal process, and require lenders to
assure that the appraiser who actually conducted the appraisal used for the FHA-insured mortgage is
correctly identified in FHA Connection. FHA does not require the use of appraisal management
companies or other third party providers for appraisal ordering, but does require that lenders take
responsibility to assure appraiser independence. While FHA's existing policies regarding appraiser
independence are consistent with the Home Valuation Code of Conduct (HVCC) (see InfoBytes, March 7,
2008), according to a HUD press release, FHA will adopt language from the HVCC to ensure full
alignment of FHA and Government Sponsored Enterprise standards. ML 09-29 addresses the portability
of appraisals for the purpose of facilitating the loan process when a borrower switches from one FHA
approved lender to another, generally requiring the first lender to transfer to the second lender an
appraisal ordered by and completed for the first lender. ML 09-30 announces a change to the validity
period for appraisals used for FHA-insured mortgages for all case numbers assigned on or after January
1, 2010 to 120 days for all appraisals on existing, proposed, and under-construction properties - a
reduction of the current validity period of six months for an appraisal of an existing property that is
complete and 12 months for proposed and under-construction properties. The changes promulgated by
ML 09-29 and ML 09-30 become effective January 1, 2010. Finally, on September 23, HUD issued ML
09-36 to remind all approved lenders and appraisers that, as of October 1, 2009, appraisers listed on the
FHA Appraiser Roster who are not state certified (certified residential or certified general) will be removed
from the Roster. For a copy of the Mortgagee Letters, please see
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-28ml.doc,
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http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-29ml.doc,
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-30ml.doc, and
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-36ml.doc.

HUD Mortgagee Letters Address Counterparty Risk Management, Streamlined Refinance Transaction
Procedures. On September 18, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) released
two Mortgagee Letters designed to strengthen the Federal Housing Administration's (FHA) oversight of
approved lenders and to revise the procedures for Streamlined Refinance Transactions. ML 09-31
implements the requirements of Public Law 111-22, the "Helping Families Save Their Homes Act of
2009," affecting various FHA programs. The letter introduces a number of changes intended to reduce
the risk of doing business with counterparties who present significant legal issues, including adding a
number of new "ineligibility criteria” for officers, partners, directors, principals, and other personnel of an
approved lender or mortgagee who, among other things, (i) have been subject to legal or disciplinary
proceedings resulting from violations of the SAFE Mortgage Licensing Act, (ii) have been subject to
indictments or convictions for offenses relating to integrity, competence, and fitness, or (iii) are engaged
in business practices that do not comport with "generally accepted practices of prudent mortgagees." The
law also imposes notification requirements on approved lenders, including (i) if an individual employee of
the lender is subject to any sanction or administrative action, (ii) a revocation of a state-issued loan
originator license pursuant to the SAFE Act, or (iii) business changes relating to the debarment,
suspension or other penalty against a lender or lender's personnel or the revocation of a state-issued
loan originator license. Additionally, the letter requires all supervised mortgagees to submit an annual
audited financial statement within 90 days of their fiscal year end. Finally, the law increases the ability of
the FHA to seek civil money penalties in certain situations, including against owners, officers, or directors
of an FHA-approved mortgagee for violations of FHA requirements.

ML 09-32 revises the procedures required for Streamline Refinance transactions. Many of the revisions
impose revised underwriting requirements, including imposing (i) a 6-month minimum seasoning
requirement, (ii) an "acceptable payment history" requirement based upon the timeliness of the
borrower's payments and the length of payment history; (iii) a maximum combined loan to value ratio if
subordinate financing remains in place, and (iv) a maximum insurable mortgage amount for the
transaction, depending upon whether an appraisal was used. The requirements also require
determination that the refinance will have a net tangible benefit for the borrower, subject to certain
determinations. The letter also disallows mortgagees from using an abbreviated uniform residential loan
application. For a copy of Mortgage Letter 09-31, please see
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-31ml.doc; for a copy of Mortgagee
Letter 09-32, please see http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-32ml.doc.

California Bar Releases Names of Attorneys Under Investigation for Loan Modification Misconduct. On
September 18, the State Bar of California (State Bar) released the names of 16 attorneys who are under
investigation for misconduct with respect to loan modification services. The named attorneys allegedly
collected fees for loan modification services from homeowners who were facing potential foreclosure and
then failed to provide those services. According to the State Bar, several attorneys involved with loan
modification services have given up their licenses to practice law rather than face disciplinary charges by
the State Bar's Office of Chief Trial Counsel and possible disbarment. The State Bar reportedly waived
confidentiality in the interest of protecting consumers. For a copy of the press release, please see
http://calbar.ca.gov/state/calbar/calbar_generic.jsp?cid=10144&n=96395.

FTC Investigates Two Mortgage Foreclosure Rescue Companies. On September 19, the Federal Trade
Commission (FTC) announced the investigation of two mortgage foreclosure rescue companies that
allegedly claimed that they would obtain a mortgage modification for virtually all customers and charged
large up-front fees, but generally failed to provide the promised foreclosure relief services. Nations
Housing Modification Center is charged with (i) violating the FTC Act and the FTC's Telemarketing Sales
Rule, (ii) misrepresenting itself as a federal government agency, (iii) charging at least $3,000 in fees per
customer, (iv) falsely claiming a 90% success rate, and (v) fraudulently promising that they would secure
mortgage modifications. Infinity Group Services (Infinity) is charged with violating the FTC Act by falsely
telling customers they would succeed in obtaining a modified mortgage loan and that, if unsuccessful, the
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customer would be refunded the up-front fee of $995, in addition to fees ranging from $2,000 to $15,000.
Infinity allegedly failed to update homeowners on the status of their loan and refused to take
homeowners' calls. According to FTC officials, the agency has begun to determine whether new rules
could be instituted to address the proliferation of fraudulent mortgage rescue companies. For a copy of
the press release, please see http://www.ftc.gov/opa/2009/09/loanmods.shtm.

HUD Sets New Principal Limit Factors for Reverse Mortgages, HECMs. On September 23, the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) issued Mortgagee Letter 2009-34, to announce a
new set of principal limit factors (PLF) for the Federal Housing Administration's (FHA) Home Equity
Conversion Mortgages (HECM) Program. Under the new PLF, the amount seniors can claim in cash
withdraws against their home for reverse mortgages or HECMs will decrease by 10 percent. The PLF
decreases are meant to address an estimated $800 million short fall in the HECM program'’s insurance
fund. The PLF changes go into effect for all HECMs assigned an FHA case number on or after October 1,
2009. For a copy of Mortgagee Letter 2009-34, please see
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-34ml.doc.

HUD Updates Conditions for Loan Modification Loss Mitigation Incentives. On September 23, the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) issued Mortgagee Letter 2009-35 to update the
conditions under which the Federal Housing Administration (FHA) will pay loss mitigation claims for
modifications of loans. Under the revised conditions, for a mortgagee's loss mitigation actions to qualify
for FHA loss mitigation incentives, the mortgagee must ensure that the note rate on a modified loan is
reduced to the "current market rate," as defined by the letter. Additionally, the mortgagee must re-
amortize the total unpaid amount dueover a 360 month period from the due date of the first installment
required under the modified mortgage. These new requirements take effect October 23, 2009. For a copy
of Mortgagee Letter 2009-35, please see
http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-35ml.doc

Connecticut State Banking Commissioner Sets Maximum Fees for Debt Negotiators. On September 28,
the Connecticut State Banking Commissioner issued a maximum fee schedule for "debt negotiation" -
including loan madification, short sales or foreclosure rescue activities - performed on behalf of
Connecticut debtors. Under the schedule, a debt negotiator may charge as much as $50 for an initial or
set-up fee and as much as $8 for monthly service fees for each creditor listed on a debt negotiation
contract; the total service fee chargeable to a debtor cannot exceed $40. The aggregate fees, including
the initial and service fees, charged by a debt negotiator cannot exceed 10 percent of the amount by
which the consumer's debt is reduced. Finally, a debt negotiator of secured debt, including Short Sales
and Foreclosure Rescue Services, cannot charge more than $500 for debt negotiation services involving
secured debt, and such a fee is collectable only upon the successful completion of the debt negotiation
services (i.e., the fee cannot be collected up-front). For a copy of the press release, please see
http://www.ct.gov/dob/cwp/view.asp?a=224580=447726.

DOJ, Bank Reach Proposed Consent Decree Regarding Allegations of Fair Housing Act, ECOA
Violations. On September 30, the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) filed a complaint and proposed
consent decree in a case alleging that First United Security Bank (the Bank) engaged in discriminatory
pricing of home mortgages and redlining, in violation of the Fair Housing Act and Equal Credit
Opportunity Act. United States v. First United Security Bank, No. 09-0644 (S.D. Ala. Sept. 30, 2009). The
complaint alleges that, in 2004, the Bank charged African-American borrowers higher rates for home
mortgage refinancing loans than similarly situated white borrowers. The complaint further alleges that the
Bank "has avoided serving the [] credit needs of majority-black census tracts," evidenced by the fact that
none of the Bank's 19 Alabama branches are located in either a majority-African-American census tract
or anywhere in the five majority-black counties in the Bank's market area. The Bank's advertising and
marketing practices were also cited in the redlining allegations. Under the settlement agreement, the
Bank must open one new branch in a majority-African-American census tract. In addition, the Bank must
spend $110,000 on a targeted marketing and advertising campaign, host or sponsor a series of financial
education seminars, create a $50,000 settlement fund to compensate aggrieved persons, and invest
$500,000 in a special financing program. For a copy of the press release, please see
http://www.usdoj.gov/opa/pr/2009/September/09-crt-1062.html. For a copy of the complaint, please see
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http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/housing/documents/fusbcomp.pdf. For a copy of the order, please see
http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/housing/documents/fusborder.pdf.

October

Connecticut "Debt Negotiation" License Required For Certain Activities Performed on Behalf of
Connecticut Debtors. Effective October 1, the Connecticut Department of Banking will require licensure
for "debt negotiation" - including loan modification, short sales or foreclosure rescue activities - performed
on behalf of Connecticut debtors. Persons triggering debt negotiation licensure must license a corporate
or "main office," as well as all branch locations where debt negotiation will occur. The application process
requires, among other things, the submission of forms as drafted by the Department, licensing fees, and
surety bond and personal forms for "control persons." Connecticut law exempts from the debt negotiation
licensing requirements (i) an attorney admitted to practice in Connecticut, when engaged in such practice,
(ii) certain banks and credit unions (however, subsidiaries of such institutions other than operating
subsidiaries of federal banks and federally-chartered out-of-state banks are not exempt from licensure),
(iii) licensed Connecticut debt adjusters, while performing debt adjuster services, (iv) individuals
performing "debt negotiation" under court order, and (v) a "bona fide nonprofit organization." For a copy
of the application and application checklists, please see
http://www.ct.gov/dob/cwp/view.asp?a=2232&0=446840.

Treasury, HUD Announce More Than 500,000 Trial Loan Madifications in Progress Under Making Home
Affordable Program. On October 8, the U.S. Department of the Treasury (Treasury) and U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) announced that they have met a goal set in July to have
500,000 trial loan modifications in progress under the Making Home Affordable program by November 1.
According to the press release, on the same day senior Treasury and HUD officials held one of a series
of ongoing meetings with servicers to discuss improving servicer efficiency and responsiveness to
borrowers during the loan modification process. For a copy of the press release, please see
http://www.ustreas.gov/press/releases/tg315.htm.

California Enacts SAFE Act Legislation. On October 11, California Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger
signed into law S.B. 36, a bill that requires the employees of licensees under the California Finance
Lenders Law (CFLL) and the California Residential Mortgage Lending Act (RMLA) that are engaged in
the business of mortgage loan origination to be licensed, beginning July 1, 2010. The bill similarly
requires licensees under the California Real Estate Law (REL) to obtain an endorsement from the
Commissioner of the California Department of Real Estate to engage in the business of mortgage loan
origination, beginning December 1, 2010. Mortgage loan originator license and endorsement applicants
are required to, among other things, (i) submit to fingerprinting for the purpose of a criminal history
background check, (ii) complete at least twenty hours of pre-license education, and (iii) pass a qualified
written test developed by the Nationwide Mortgage Licensing System (NMLS). The bill further provides
that licensed mortgage loan originators must complete at least eight hours of continuing education
annually and must disclose their NMLS identifier on all residential mortgage loan application forms,
solicitations, and advertisements. The bill also enacts other related provisions, such as requiring REL
licensees to submit an annual business activities report to the Commissioner of the California Department
of Real Estate. For a copy of S.B. 36, please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA _SB36_2009.pdf.

California Passes Slate of Mortgage Laws. On October 11, in addition to S.B. 36, California Governor
Arnold Schwarzenegger signed into law a collection of bills designed to protect the interests of California
homebuyers.

e A.B. 260, among other things, (i) prohibits "steering" borrowers into higher-priced loans that are
more risky than lower-interest, fixed-rate loans for which the borrower had actually qualified, (ii)
bans negative amortization loans where the loan gets larger the longer the borrower holds the
loan, and (iii) establishes strict caps on prepayment penalties. A.B. 260 also imposes a fiduciary
duty for all mortgage brokers and banks acting as mortgage brokers, and prohibits lenders and
brokers from making false or misleading statements relative to the terms of a subprime loan. For
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a copy of A.B. 260, please see
http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA_AB260_2009.pdf.

e A.B. 329 requires reverse mortgage lenders to provide additional, clear information to senior
consumers interested in reverse mortgage products. Among its specific provisions are
requirements that a lender provide a prospective borrower with (i) a list of at least ten HUD-
approved reverse mortgage counseling agencies, and (ii) a written checklist of issues to discuss
with the reverse mortgage counselor. For a copy of A.B. 329, please see
http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA_AB329 2009.pdf.

e A.B. 957 prohibits the seller of certain foreclosed residential real property from conditioning the
sale of such property on a buyer's purchase of title insurance from a particular insurer or title
company and/or escrow services from a particular provider. The bill took immediate effect, and
remains in effect until January 15, 2015. For a copy of A.B. 957, please see
http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA _AB957 2009.pdf.

e A.B. 1160 provides that a lender that negotiates a mortgage loan primarily in Spanish, Chinese,
Tagalog, Vietnamese, or Korean is required to deliver to the borrower a specified form in that
same language. The form, to be created by the Department of Corporations and the Department
of Financial Institutions, will provide a summary of the terms of the loan contract or agreement.
A.B. 1160 becomes effective July 1, 2010, or 90 days after the Department of Corporations and
the Department of Financial Institutions create the specified form, whichever is later. For a copy
of A.B. 1160, please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA_AB1160 2009.pdf.

e S.B. 237 requires appraisal management companies to register with the California Office of Real
Estate Appraisers, and provides that an appraisal management company is prohibited from
improperly influencing or attempting to improperly influence an appraisal. For a copy of S.B. 237,
please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA _SB237 2009.pdf.

e S.B. 239 makes it a felony to commit fraud in connection with a mortgage loan application, where
the value of the fraud meets the threshold for grand theft under California law (currently, $400).
For a copy of S.B. 239, please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/CA_SB239 2009.pdf.

California Enacts Law Prohibiting Up-Front Fees for Foreclosure Relief Services. On October 11,
California Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger signed into law S.B. 94, a bill that, until January 1, 2013,
prohibits any person who offers to perform residential mortgage loan modifications or other forms of
mortgage loan forbearance for compensation paid by a borrower from (i) demanding or receiving any pre-
performance compensation, (ii) requiring any security as collateral for final compensation, or (iii) taking a
power of attorney from a borrower. A violation of these prohibitions constitutes a misdemeanor or is
subject to specified fines. The new law does not apply to certain actions taken by a person who offers
loan modification or other loan forbearance services for a loan owned or serviced by that person,
including, but not limited to, collecting principal, interest, or other charges under the terms of a loan
before the loan is modified, including charges to establish a new payment schedule for a non-delinquent
loan. The new law also requires any person who offers to perform residential mortgage loan modifications
or other forms of mortgage loan forbearance, as specified, for compensation paid by a borrower, to
provide a specified 14-point bold type statement regarding loan modification fees, and makes a violation
of this prohibition a misdemeanor or subject to specified fines. Lastly, the new law adds to the California
Finance Lenders Law a prohibition on making a materially false or misleading statement or representation
to a borrower about the terms or conditions of that borrower's loan, when making or brokering a loan. The
new law became effective immediately upon signing. For a copy of S.B. 94, please see
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/09-10/bill/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb 94 bill 20091011 chaptered.pdf.

Massachusetts Land Court Judge Reaffirms That Foreclosing Lenders Must Be Assigned Mortgage Prior
to Notice of Foreclosure. On October 14, a Massachusetts Land Court Judge, in response to a motion to
vacate, reaffirmed his prior ruling that foreclosing lenders in Massachusetts must possess a valid
assignment of a mortgage in recordable form before publishing or mailing a notice of foreclosure. U.S.
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Bank Nat'l Assoc. v. Ibanez, No. 08 MISC 384283, 2009 WL 3297551 (Mass. Land Ct. Oct. 14, 2009). In
Ibanez, the plaintiffs, foreclosing lenders acting as trustees for securitized trusts, petitioned the court to
validate certain foreclosure sales of residential property located in Massachusetts for which they had
acted as both the foreclosing party and the only bidder. In each case, the plaintiffs did not hold the
mortgage in recordable form at the time of notice and sale, but, instead, obtained a back-dated
assignment of the mortgage following the sale. The court dismissed the plaintiffs’' cases, holding that the
back-dated assignments were invalid, and that the plaintiffs’ failure to possess assignments in recordable
form that were executed before the notices of sale meant that they were not mortgage holders when they
issued the notices of foreclosure, as required under Massachusetts law. The court expressed its view that
if "industry standards and practices" arising from placing mortgages in securitizations meant that the
mortgage would not be assigned prior to a notice of foreclosure, then the lenders should seek to have the
Massachusetts legislature change the law. The court further noted that Massachusetts has not adopted
the position that the mortgage "follows the note." Rather, in Massachusetts, a note holder only has the
right to bring an action to have the corresponding mortgage assigned to it. For a copy of the opinion,
please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/Ibanez.pdf.

HUD Updates HOPE for Homeowners Program Guidance. On October 20, the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) issued Mortgagee Letter 09-43 to update its comprehensive
guidance on the HOPE for Homeowners Program in light of recent legislative amendments to the
program. The letter is effective for endorsements on or after January 1, 2010, and updates, among other
things, requirements pertaining to borrower eligibility, appraisal standards, mortgage insurance
premiums, loan-to-value and debt-to-income ratios, and loan documentation. The letter also sets forth
new requirements applicable to pre-closing review test cases. The HOPE for Homeowners Program is
generally effective for endorsements on or before September 30, 2011. For a copy of the letter, please
see http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-43ml.doc.

Fannie Mae Announces New Loss Mitigation Program for Investors, Owners of Second Homes. On
October 20, Fannie Mae announced its Payment Reduction Plan (PRP) for homeowners who are unable
to receive a mortgage loan modification under the Home Affordable Modification Program (HAMP). The
PRP replaces and makes several adjustments to Fannie Mae's HomeSaver Forbearance (HSF) program.
Most notably, the PRP's application includes non-owner occupied properties, such as investment
properties and second homes. Further, under the PRP, the borrower's monthly payment can only be
reduced by up to 30%, while the HSF program permitted reductions up to 50%. The HSF program
reductions included principal, interest, taxes, insurance and other escrow items, but under the PRP, the
reduction only includes the "principal and interest" component of the payment. Effective November 1,
2009, the HSF program can no longer be offered to borrowers. For more information on the retirement of
the HSF program and on PRP eligibility guidelines and procedures, please see
https://www.efanniemae.com/sf/guides/ssa/annltrs/pdf/2009/0930.pdf.

House Committees Approve Legislation to Create Consumer Financial Protection Agency. During the
month of October, both the House Financial Services Committee (the Financial Services Committee) and
the House Energy and Commerce Committee (the Commerce Committee) approved H.R. 3126, the
Consumer Financial Protection Agency (CFPA) Act, clearing the legislation for consideration by the full
House of Representatives. If enacted, the bill will establish an independent agency tasked with
overseeing the provision of consumer financial products and services. In reporting the legislation out of
committee, the Financial Services Committee approved several key amendments. In particular, the bill
includes provisions that would codify the preemption standard set forth in Barnett Bank of Marion County,
N.A. v. Nelson for national banks, while repealing federal preemption for operating subsidiaries of
national banks and federal thrifts - and thus overturning the U.S. Supreme Court decision in Watters v.
Wachovia Bank, N.A. The bill also exempts community banks with less than $10 billion in assets and
credit unions with less than $1.5 billion in assets from stand-alone CFPA examinations, although such
"small banks" would still be subject to other CFPA authority, including as a back-up regulator. Beyond
that, the Financial Services Committee also approved amendments that would expand the scope of the
CFPA authority, including to "service providers,” defined as any person who provides a "material service"
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to a covered person when providing a consumer financial product or service. The Financial Services
Committee also exempted certain types of businesses, including manufactured home retailers and auto
dealers.

Separately, the Commerce Committee approved the bill with minor changes to the legislation reported out
of the Financial Services Committee. The Commerce Committee approved a manager's amendment that
changes the leadership of the CFPA from a single director to a panel of five directors with staggered
terms and strengthens the Federal Trade Commission's (FTC) litigation authority under the FTC Act.

For a copy of the Financial Services Committee Print, which includes all of the approved amendments
from the markup in the Financial Services Committee, as well as the list of amendments offered in the
Commerce Committee, please see
http://energycommerce.house.gov/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=1793:energy-and-
commerce-committee-markup&catid=141:full-committee&ltemid=85. For a copy of the full list of
amendments from the Financial Services Committee markup, please see
http://www.house.gov/apps/list/speech/financialsvcs _dem/markup 100809.shtml.

Third Circuit Holds RESPA Claims Survive Dismissal with No Allegation of Overcharge. On October 28,
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit reversed the dismissal of a putative class action, holding
that the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA) authorizes private rights of action even in the
absence of an allegation that there has been an overcharge. Alston v. Countrywide Fin. Corp., No. 08-
4334, 2009 WL 3448264 (3rd Cir. Oct. 28, 2009). The plaintiff borrowers in Alston obtained home
mortgages from the defendant lender where they were required to obtain private mortgage insurance
(PMI) from insurers that would reinsure their policies with the lender's affiliate reinsurer under a so-called
"captive reinsurance agreement." According to the borrowers, the captive reinsurance agreement violated
RESPA's anti-kickback provisions because it allowed the defendant reinsurer to collect more than $892
million in reinsurance premiums without paying anything for the claims, thus constituting a kickback from
the lender to the reinsurer. The defendants moved to dismiss, arguing, in part, that the borrowers lacked
standing under Article Ill of the U.S. Constitution because they did not allege that they were actually
overcharged. The borrowers argued that the captive reinsurance arrangements constituted an injury for
purposes of standing - even if they did not result in overcharges - because the arrangements kept PMI
premiums artificially inflated and decreased competition among PMI providers. The district court granted
the defendants' motion, noting that the borrowers lacked Article Il standing to allege that they paid an
artificially inflated rate and holding that RESPA's damages provision authorized the borrowers to sue only
when they had been overcharged. The Third Circuit reversed, finding that RESPA's plain language did
not require the borrowers to allege an "overcharge." According to the court, "the provision of statutory
damages based on the entire payment, not on an overcharge, is a certain indication that Congress did
not intend to require an overcharge to recover under Section 8 of RESPA." Agreeing with the conclusion
of the Sixth Circuit in In re Carter 1l, 553 F.3d 979 (6th Cir. 2009), the court held that RESPA's definition
of "any" charge means that charges are not limited to a particular type of charge, such as an overcharge.
Accordingly, the court held that the borrowers had suffered an injury sufficient to support Article IlI
standing. The court also agreed with a line of cases holding that the borrowers' damages could be three
times the total payment for the challenged service, not just the resultant overcharge. For a copy of the
opinion, please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/Alston _v_Countrywide.pdf.

November

North Carolina Regulator Proposes Mortgage Rules Aimed at Foreclosure Prevention, Consumer
Protection. On November 3, the North Carolina Commissioner of Banks (NCCOB) announced proposed
mortgage rules aimed at reducing the number of foreclosures in North Carolina, as well as improving
consumer protection and the functioning of the mortgage market. With respect to reducing foreclosures,
the rules propose requiring mortgage servicers to (i) stop foreclosure efforts pending the consideration of
a loss mitigation request, and (ii) respond promptly and clearly to homeowner requests for assistance. To
improve consumer protection and the functioning of the mortgage market, the rules would, (i) prohibit
lenders from making loans if the use of the lender was a requirement in obtaining a discount from an
affiliated party, (ii) require mortgage lenders to provide an early disclosure that compares a proposed loan
offer to a standard 30-year fixed-rate mortgage loan, (iii) prohibit compensation to lenders and brokers
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that are based on the terms of the loans, and (iv) prohibit deceptive solicitations for refinance. In addition
to these substantive proposals, the rules would also implement technical provisions of the North Carolina
S.A.F.E. Act, which was enacted in July 2009 (reported in InfoBytes, Aug. 21, 2009). The NCCOB is
accepting public comments regarding the proposed rules until January 2, 2010. In addition, the NCCOB
will hold a public hearing regarding the rules on December 8, 2009. For a copy of the press release,
please see http://www.nccob.org/NR/rdonlyres/B25AFA32-607E-42D3-94EF-
EFA8F5543711/0/rulespressrelease10313.pdf. For a copy of the proposed mortgage rules, please see
http://www.oah.state.nc.us/rules/register/\Volume24Issue09November22009.pdf.

Ohio Attorney General Files Complaint Against Mortgage Servicing Company. On November 5, Ohio
Attorney General Richard Cordray filed a Complaint in the Court of Common Pleas, Cuyahoga County,
Ohio, against American Home Mortgage Servicing Inc. (AHMSI), a Texas-based loan servicing company,
which services more than 12,000 loans in Ohio. State of Ohio v. American Home Mortgage Servicing,
Inc., CV 09 708888 (Cuyahoga Cty. Oh. C.P. Nov. 5, 2009). The Complaint alleges violations of the Ohio
Consumer Sales Practices Act (CSPA), including incompetent and inadequate customer service and
failure to offer timely or affordable loss mitigation options to borrowers. Among other allegations, the
State of Ohio alleges that AHMSI required loan modification agreements forced consumers to pay
excessive fees and waive their rights to get assistance. The Complaint seeks an injunction against
AHMSI from engaging in the acts alleged in the lawsuit, a declaratory judgment, civil penalties, and
consumer damages. The suit also requests that the court order AHMSI to implement processes designed
to provide efficient, competent, and adequate customer service to all of its Ohio mortgage customers.
Also on November 5, prior to the Ohio Attorney General filing suit, AHMSI filed a Complaint for a
declaratory judgment against the State of Ohio in the Court of Common Pleas, Franklin County, Ohio.
AHMSI seeks a declaration that its loss mitigation policies and customer service has not violated the
CSPA, or any other Ohio law. For a copy of the Ohio Attorney General's Complaint, please see
http://www.ohioattorneygeneral.qov/AHMSIComplaint

Florida Attorney General Sues Foreclosure Rescue Services for Collecting Up-Front Fees. On November
9, Florida Attorney General Bill McCollum announced a lawsuit filed against two Florida foreclosure
rescue service companies that allegedly charged up to $2,500 in illegal up-front fees for foreclosure
assistance services. According to the Attorney General, an investigation revealed that Payment
Modification Company and The Bostonian Group, LLC (d/b/a People's First) charged the fee in five
installments secured by post dated checks. The Attorney General is seeking (i) permanent injunctions
prohibiting the companies from charging up-front fees, (ii) restitution on behalf of injured consumers, (iii)
civil penalties of $15,000 for each violation, and (iv) reimbursement for attorney's fees and costs related
to the investigation. For a copy of the press release, please see

http://www.buckleysandler.com/FL_AG 110909.pdf.

Senate Banking Committee Chairman Dodd Releases Financial Reform Legislation. On November 10,
Senate Banking Committee Chairman Christopher Dodd (D-CT) released a draft of the bill (the Dodd hill)
that will serve as the primary vehicle for financial regulatory reform efforts in the Senate. In contrast to the
piecemeal approach to consideration and passage taken by House Financial Services Committee
Chairman Barney Frank (D-MA), Chairman Dodd included all of the relevant financial reform proposals in
one large bill. No definitive timeline has been set for considering the legislation in the Senate Banking
Committee, although some public statements suggest that the bill may be considered in Committee in
mid-December. Notably, the Dodd bill was announced without any support from the Senate Republicans.

As anticipated, some pieces of the legislation differ significantly from both the House legislation and the
proposals of the Obama Administration, most notably the creation of one single bank regulator to oversee
the financial system. Senator Dodd's proposal would not only combine the Office of Thrift Supervision and
the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, but also remove bank supervision authority from both the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the Federal Reserve Board, and place authority in the
"Financial Institutions Regulatory Administration" (FIRA). Within this new agency, Senator Dodd would
create and house the new Consumer Financial Protection Agency (CFPA).

Senator Dodd's CFPA language is substantially similar to the "discussion draft" released by Rep. Frank
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(D-MA) on September 25, which has become H.R. 3126. However, the Dodd hill does not contain any
amended language added to H.R. 3126 during its markup. Therefore, currently, Dodd's hill does not (i)
relax the examination standards for banks with less than $10 billion in assets, (ii) carve out insurance
products, (iii) include remittance transfers under the scope of the CFPA, and (iv) revise the broad
preemption language to ostensibly codify the Barnett Bank case standard for nationally-chartered
institutions. Instead, both nationally-chartered institutions and their subsidiaries would be subject to state
consumer protection laws.

Independent of the House amendments, the Dodd bill contains some important differences relating to the
CFPA title of the bill. Most significantly, the Dodd bill puts in place a 5-member Board, with one member
servicing as the CFPA Director, to lead the CFPA rather than the single-director model favored by Rep.
Frank. The Dodd bill also brings under the title of "enumerated consumer laws" the Community
Reinvestment Act, Consumer Leasing Act, Fair Credit Billing Act and the Home Ownership and Equity
Protection Act. In addition, under the Dodd bill the CFPA could define by rule any activity as a "financial
activity," including any activity (i) entered into or conducted as a subterfuge, or (ii) with a purpose to
evade the bill's requirements or consumer laws. The "catch-all" provision in the House language is
arguably more narrow; under that bill, the CFPA Director could bring under the definition of "financial
activity" (i) an activity with a substantial likelihood of having a material adverse impact on the
creditworthiness or financial well-being of consumers, or (ii) an activity incidental or complimentary to any
other CFPA-regulated financial activity.

Another significant piece of the Dodd bill is the title devoted to regulating "systemic risk" and institutions
that are "too big to fail." In particular, the Dodd bill would create the Agency for Financial Stability (AFS),
run by a nine-member board of directors, whose purpose is to (i) identify risks to the stability of the
financial system as a whole, (ii) promote market discipline by "eliminating expectations" that the U.S.
Government would shield shareholders of complex financial institutions in the case of a failure, and (iii)
respond to emerging risks presented by financial activities and products that could threaten the stability of
U.S. financial markets. AFS would have the ability to require complex institutions (called "specified
financial companies") to submit to enhanced supervision and prudential standards, and also to write and
promulgate rules for capital, leverage, liquidity, risk management and other requirements for large,
complex institutions. In addition, AFS could identify and require a bank holding company, or a non-bank
financial company, to be subject to enhanced supervision and prudential requirements, upon determining
that the failure of such institution could pose a threat to the financial stability of the US. Furthermore, AFS
could, after notice and an opportunity for hearing, require a specified financial company that it determines
could threaten the stability of the U.S. to (i) sell or otherwise transfer assets, (ii) terminate one or more
activities, or (iii) impose activity restrictions or conditions. The Dodd bill also includes a new resolution
authority regime to wind down complex institutions whose failure would have "serious adverse effects on
financial stability or economic conditions” in the U.S. The FDIC will serve as the resolution authority under
the proposal.

Finally, the Dodd bill would require the Securities and Exchange Commission and the new FIRA to adopt
regulations that would mandate that any securitizer retains an economic interest in a "material portion of
the credit risk" of any asset included in an asset-backed security that is sold or transferred, which should
be not less than 10% of the credit risk.

A copy of the full text of the Dodd bill is available at
http://banking.senate.gov/public/_files/AYO09D44 xml.pdf, and a summary of the bill is available at
http://banking.senate.gov/public/_files/FinancialReformDiscussionDraftRevised111009.pdf.

California Federal Court Holds Servicer Has No Duty Under RESPA to Investigate Borrower's Last
Known Address. On November 12, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of California held that a
defendant servicer did not violate the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA) and California law
by failing to investigate plaintiff borrowers' last known address when a notice of transfer of servicing letter
was returned as undeliverable. Rodriguez v. Countrywide Home Loans, 1:08cv0869, 2009 WL 3792308
(E.D. Cal. Nov. 12, 2009). In Rodriguez, the servicer sent all correspondence pertaining to the servicing
of the borrowers' loan to the address provided by the borrowers in their loan documents. However,
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correspondence sent to the borrowers' provided address, in particular a notice of transfer of servicing,
was returned as undeliverable. The borrowers alleged that the servicer's failure to deliver a notice of
transfer of servicing letter violated RESPA and its implementing regulations, as well as California law.
The borrowers did not dispute that they failed to provide (i) an alternate mailing address in their loan
documents, and (ii) a change of mailing address notification. In granting the servicer's motion for
summary judgment, the court declined to interpret RESPA and California law as imposing a duty on
servicers to investigate a borrower's mailing address by using other documentation submitted in
connection with a loan (such as an address on a money order or a driver's license). Instead, according to
the court, it was the responsibility of the borrowers to comply with the servicer's notification policies and to
ensure that their loan documents were accurate at the time of execution. For a copy of the opinion,
please see http://www.buckleysandler.com/documents/Rodriguez_v_CHL.pdf.

HUD Announces Four-Month Period of "Restraint” to Enforce New RESPA Rule. On November 13, the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) announced that the staff of its Mortgagee
Review Board (MRB) will exercise "restraint” in enforcing new regulatory requirements under the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA), which are set to become fully effective on January 1, 2010,
against certain entities for the first four months of 2010. According to HUD, the MRB will exercise such
restraint for Federal Housing Administration (FHA)-approved lenders that have demonstrated that they
are making a "good faith effort" to comply with the new requirements. In determining whether a
mortgagee has made a good faith effort, MRB staff will consider (i) whether the mortgagee has relied on
the new RESPA rule (the Rule) and other written guidance issued by HUD, and (ii) the extent to which the
mortgagee has made sufficient investment and commitment in technology, training, and quality control
designed to comply with the Rule. Additionally, HUD is asking other federal and relevant state
enforcement agencies to exercise the same 120-day restraint in enforcement for non-FHA originators and
other settlement service providers who demonstrate a good faith effort to implement the Rule. For a copy
of the press release, please see

http://portal.hud.gov/portal/page/portal/HUD/press/press releases media advisories/2009/HUDNo0.09-
215. For a copy of HUD's frequently asked questions addressing the Rule, please see
http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/ramh/res/resparulefags.pdf.

Federal Banking Regulators Finalize Making Home Affordable Program Capital Rules. On November 13,
the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the Office of Thrift Supervision approved making permanent
the interim interagency rule addressing the capital treatment of residential mortgage loans modified under
the Making Home Affordable Program (HAMP). The final rule treats risk-weight assignments identically to
an interim rule issued by the agencies in June 2009 (reported in InfoBytes, June 26, 2009). Under the
final rule, mortgage loans modified under the program will retain the risk weight assigned to the loan prior
to the modification if the loan continues to meet other applicable prudential criteria. The final rule revises
the interim rule to clarify that mortgage loans whose HAMP modifications are in the trial period are
subject to the same risk weight assessment treatment. The rule will become final thirty days after
publication in the Federal Register. For a copy of the rule, please see
http://www.fdic.gov/news/board/2009nov12no02.pdf. For a copy of the joint press release announcing the
action, please see http://www.fdic.gov/news/news/press/2009/pr09204.html.

Fed Approves Interim Rule Regarding Notice to Homeowners with Sold or Transferred Mortgages. On
November 16, the Federal Reserve Board (Fed) approved an interim final rule requiring that notice be
given to consumers when their mortgage loans are sold or transferred pursuant to the Helping Families
Save Their Homes Act. The interim rule requires the purchaser or assignee of a mortgage loan to provide
the required disclosures in writing within 30 days. Compliance with the interim final rule is optional for 60
days and the Fed has designated a 60-day public comment period for the rule. For a copy of the press
release, please see http://www.federalreserve.gov/newsevents/press/bcreq/20091116b.htm. For a copy
of the rule, please see http://www.federalreserve.gov/newsevents/press/bcreg/bcreg20091116b1.pdf.

New York Enacts Foreclosure Legislation. On November 16, New York Governor David Patterson
announced the passage of Governor's Program Bill No. 46, which is aimed to provide protections to New
York homeowners and tenants facing foreclosure. The bill expands upon SB 8143, a bill enacted in
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August 2008 (reported in InfoBytes, Aug. 8, 2008). The new bill, among other things, (i) requires a 90-day
pre-foreclosure notice to any borrower facing foreclosure (notice currently is required only to borrowers
with subprime loans), (ii) requires lenders who serve such a notice to make a filing with the New York
Banking Department within three days, (iii) expands the scope of mandatory settlement conferences from
subprime borrowers to all borrowers, (iv) requires that tenants receive written notice of change of
ownership of a property and be permitted to remain for the longer of their lease term or 90 days, (v)
requires plaintiffs who have obtained a judgment of foreclosure to maintain the foreclosed property, and
(vi) prohibits brokers who perform "distressed property consulting services" from accepting upfront fees.
For a copy of the press release, please see http://www.banking.state.ny.us/pr091116.htm. For a copy of
the hill, please see http://www.ny.gov/governor/bills/pdf/gpb_46.pdf.

HUD Issues Mortgagee Letter Addressing Requirements for Subordinate Liens Under HECM Program.
On November 18, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) issued Mortgage
Letter 2009-49 to remind HUD-approved mortgagees and housing counseling agencies that subordinate
liens are generally prohibited in connection with the origination of a home equity conversion mortgage
(HECM) loan. However, certain subordinate liens are permissible at the time of HECM origination,
including (i) liens resulting from outstanding federal obligations or state or local court judgments, provided
that such liens are subordinated to the first and second HECM liens at closing, and (ii) federal judgments
or debts, provided that a satisfactory repayment plan is in place prior to closing. The letter also
emphasizes that it is the responsibility of a mortgagee to confirm that the first and second HECM liens are
the first and second liens of record, and to check the prospective HECM borrower's credit report for any
debts against the collateral real estate and/or any federal debts. For a copy of Mortgagee Letter 2009-49,
please see http://www.hud.gov/offices/adm/hudclips/letters/mortgagee/files/09-49ml.pdf.

Pennsylvania Attorney General Sues Four Loan Maodification Businesses. On November 23,
Pennsylvania Attorney General Tom Corbett announced lawsuits alleging consumer fraud against four
loan modification companies. According to Attorney General Corbett, one or more of the companies (i)
made false or misleading claims about the ability to modify loans, (ii) used deceptive mailings implying
that the companies were affiliated with government agencies and programs, (iii) failed to provide
consumers with required financial disclosures, (iv) failed to inform consumers about their five-day right to
cancel, (v) accepted up-front fees without posting a required surety bond or maintaining a trust account,
and (vi) were not licensed by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking for the provided services. The four
companies charged are Foreclosure Awareness Inc., Nationwide Foreclosure Prevention Center LLC,
Best Interest Rate Mortgage Company LLC, and U.S. Mortgage Mod LLC, as well as their owners. For a
copy of the press release, please see

http://www.banking.state.pa.us/banking/lib/banking/news and events/press releases/2009/11-23-

09 ag mortgage mod_suits.pdf.
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Background

* Rise in Real Estate Market
. Prices up

. Lending up

. Homeownership Up

» Market Slowed and Turned
. Rise in Defaults

. Rise in Foreclosures

Loan Modifications

. Reinstatement

. Promise to pay

. Short-term repayment plans
. Long-term repayment plans
. Extensions

. Partial claims

. Modifications

. Forebearances

. Soldiers and Sailors

. Short Sale
. Deed in Lieu




Modification Types

Capitalization

Term Extension

Rate extension/Bypass

Rate reductions

Rate reduction and capitalization
Principal Forbearance

Principal Reduction

Parties to Modification Decision

Borrower

Servicer

Investors

Insurers

Securities and trusts

Loan Issues

Position

Ownership

Loan type

Default status
Current
Imminent default
Default
Foreclosure




Modification considerations

Eligible for MHA
Trial modification
Final modification

Fannie Mae

Freddie Mac

FHA

Non-MHA programs

For Countrywide — Some Bank of America
Attorneys General Agreement

Review borrower status

Default/Non-default
Borrower financials
Gross income
Net income
Pay stubs
Bank statements
Tax returns

Review property status

Value of property
Equity cushion
NPV




Is Modification Possible?

If a modification possible — reach out

Collections

Ask about modification

Or other options
Workout

Attempt modification

Or other options
Foreclosure

10

Problems with modifications

Not well understood
Lenders ramping up
Lender backlog

Borrowers non-cooperative
Demands not reasonable
Uncertainty
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Response - Litigation

By Borrower
Wants to keep home
Wants to preserve credit
Wants a modification
Seeks delay

By Agency
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Litigation Claims

Origination Issues
Statutory Issues
Servicing Issues
Foreclosure Issues
Mediation

13

Origination Issues

Misrepresentation
Loan type
Payments
Interest rate
Adjustment
Assignee Liability
Suitability
Bad loan for me
Could not afford
Negative amortization
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Statutory Issues

Federal
TILA
RESPA
ECOA
FHA

State
Various
Translation
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Servicing Issues

Produce the note
Failed to offer workout
Failed to offer proper or affordable

workout

Failed to give a modification
Misapplied payments

16

Foreclosure issues

Notices not proper
Timing off

Failed to follow statutes
Did not offer modification

Compliance with new mediation
requirements

17
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Types of lawyers

Mass lawsuits
One attorney files tens or hundreds of cases
Same claim
Regardless of borrower
Regardless of lender
Regardless of situation
Typically
Mass media advertising
Closed community
Low success

18




Individual lawsuit

Picks clients carefully
Proper claims
High success

19

Lenders Responses

Offer loan modification
Expedited
Postpone foreclosure
Postpone litigation
Remove/Do Not Remove
Motion to dismiss

20

Courts/AG responses to
modification litigation

Federal courts overwhelmed
State courts overwhelmed
Consolidate actions by judge
Consolidate actions by attorney
Mediations

Orders to show cause
Disbarments/Discipline
Invalidate “Bad Lenders” loans

21




Agency Complaints

» HUD and related housing agencies
» Federal banking regulators

-0OTS

—Fed

—FDIC

-0CC
« State licensing agencies and AGs

22

What's next?

. Loan resets

. Subprime defaults

. Prime defaults

. FHA defaults

. Modification defaults

. Recognize the borrower’s situation

23
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Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”), for its
complaint alleges that:

1. Plaintiff brings this action under Sections 5(a), 13(b), and 19 of the
Federal Trade Commuission Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), and 57b;
Section 704(c) of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act (“ECOA”), 15 U.S.C,

§ 1691¢(c); and Section 202.16(a)(2) of its implementing Federal Reserve Board

Regulation B (“Regulation B”), 12 C.F.R. § 202.16(a)(2), to obtain a permanent

injunction, consumer redress, disgorgement, and other equitable relief for

Defendants’ violations of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. §§

1691-1691f, and its implementing Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. pt. 202.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,
1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and under 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), 56(a), 57b, and

1691c(c).
3. Venue in the United States District Court for the Central District of
Teliformip e oroner upndor 28 118 0 88 1381 (b and under 1511870 8 53710
DEFENDANTS

4, Defendant Golden Empire Mortgage, Inc. (“GEM”) is a California
corporation that maintains its principal office and place of business in Bakersfield,
California. At all times relevant to this Complaint, GEM has maintained offices and
transacted business in the Central District of California.

5. Defendant Howard D. Kootstra (“Kootstra™) is the sole shareholder,
owner, president, and chief executive officer of GEM. Defendant Kootstra, in his
capacity as the sole shareholder, owner, president, and chief executive officer of
GEM, has formulated, directed, controlled, or had the authority to control, the acts

and practices of GEM, including the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint. At
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all times relevant to this Complaint, Kootstra has resided in the State of California
and has transacted business in the Central District of California.

6. At all times relevant to this complaint, GEM and Kootstra (together, -
*Defendants”) have been “creditors” as defined in Section 702(e) of the ECOA, 15
U.S.C. § 1691a(e), and Section 202.2(/) of Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. § 202.2(/), and
therefore have been required to comply with the applicable provisions of the ECOA
and Regulation B.

COMMERCE

7. The acts and practices of Defendants alleged in this complaint have

been in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44, as amended.
DEFENDANTS’ COURSE OF BUSINESS
3. From at least January 1, 2006 to the present, Defendants have been
regularly engaged in the business of originating and financing mortgage loans. The

majority of Defendants’ business is direct or “retail” mortgage lending, in which

iy Alimatisen L pacidoans Teterners tanmg et fhisie sennmlasag
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loan officers and branch managers at their approximately 45 brariches.

9. Defendants originate numerous types of mortgage loans, such as
Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae loans, subprime loans and Alt-A loans, jumbo loans,
prime and subprime second-lien loans, and government loans such as Federal
Housing Administration and Department of Veterans Affairs loans.

10.  Defendants determine whether applicants are qualified for financing and
set the terms and conditions of any financing to be granted. The vast majority of
Defendants’ direct mortgage loans are funded by, and in the name of, GEM. GEM

has submitted mortgage loan data to the Federal Reserve Board pursuant to the

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, 12 U.S.C. §§ 28012810, since at least 2004,
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11.  Each mortgage loan originated by Defendants’ loan officers and branch
managers has a price that includes both an interest rate and up-front fees. Both the
interest rate and the up-front fees on each loan are determined (1) in part by the
credit characteristics of applicants and the underwriting risk to Defendants (the “risk-
based price”), and (2) in part at the discretion of Defendants’ employee loan officers
and branch managers (the “overage™).

12.  As a matter of policy, Defendants’ loan officers and branch managers, at
their discretion, may charge applicants overages in addition to the risk-based price.
These overages are not based on the underwriting risk or the credit characteristics of
the applicants. Defendants’ loan officers and branch managers may charge
applicants overages through a higher interest rate, higher up-front charges, or both.
This policy of allowing such overages is referred to herein as the “Discretionary
Pricing Policy.” Defendants authorized the Discretionary Pricing Policy.

13. Pursuant to the Discretionary Pricing Policy, Defendants’ loan officers

keep as compensation a portion of whatever overage they charge applicants.

14 The Defendants contract with eack loan officer individually 1o
determine the portion of the overage that constitutes the loan officer’s compensation.

15. Defendants’ branch managers keep as compensation the net profits of a
branch. The higher the overages on each loan originated at a branch, the greater the
branch’s net profits and corresponding branch manager compensation.

16.  The Defendants contract with each branch manager individually to
determine the calculation of the branch’s net profits, which include revenues from
overages.

17.  Pursuant to the Discretionary Pricing Policy, Defendants give their loan
officers and branch managers wide discretion to determine the amount of the overage
imposed on an applicant’s loan. Also pursuant to the Discretionary Pricing Policy,

Defendants place only one limitation on the amount of overage that may be charged
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on a loan: Defendants cap the overage amount at a total of three percent of an
applicant’s loan amount (hereafter “Overage Cap”). However, Defendants’
Discretionary Pricing Policy allows a branch manager or a member of Defendants’
senior management team to grant exceptions to the Overage Cap, resulting in
overages that exceed the three percent Overage Cap.

18.  From at least January 1, 2006 to the present, Defendants did not review,
monitor, examine, or analyze the overages imposed on Hispanic applicants compared
to non-Hispanic white applicants to ensure that loan officers and branch managers
were not unjustifiably charging higher overages to Hispanic applicants. Defendants
also did not review, monitor, examine, or analyze any other aspects or measures of
loan price, such as annual percentage rate, to ensure that loan officers and branch
managers were not unjustifiably charging higher prices to Hispanic applicants.
Defendants also did not review, monitor, examine, or analyze the exceptions granted
to Defendants’ Overage Cap to ensure that branch managers and senior management

were not unjustifiably granting exceptions with more frequency on loans to Hispanic

19.  From at least January 1, 2006 to at least December 31, 2006, Defendants
made exceptions to their Overage Cap for loans originated to Hispanic applicants
substantially and significantly more frequently than they made exceptions to their
Overage Limit for loans originated to non-Hispanic white applicants. Every such
exception resulted in an overage exceeding the three percent Overage Cap.

20.  From at least January 1, 2006 to at least December 31, 2006, Defendants
charged Hispanic applicants, on average, higher prices for their mortgage loans than
non-Hispanic white applicants. These price differentials were caused by Defendants’
Discretionary Pricing Policy. Defendants’ Discretionary Pricing Policy resulted in
Hispanic applicants being charged higher overages because of their national origin.

These disparities in the overages charged are substantial, statistically significant, and
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cannot be explained by factors related to underwriting risk or credit characteristics of
the applicants.

21. Information as to each applicant’s national origin was available and
known to Defendants and their employees, including to the employees who made the
decisions to grant or deny loans and to set or confirm the terms and conditions of
each loan granted.

VIOLATIONS OF THE ECOA. REGULATION B. AND THE FTC ACT

22, Section 701(a)(1) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. § 1691(a)(1), and Section
202.4(a) of Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. § 202.4(a), prohibit a creditor from

discriminating against an applicant with respect to any aspect of a credit transaction

on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, or age
(provided the applicant has the capacity to contract).

23.  Section 704(c) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. § 1691c(c), specifically
empowers the Commission to enforce the ECOA. Under its provisions, Defendants’
violations of the ECOA are deemed to be violations of the FTC Act and are

-~

' enforceable as such by the Commission under thaet Act. Further the Commission i
authorized to use all of its functions and powers under the FTC Act to enforce
compliance with the ECOA by any person, irrespective of whether that person 1s
engaged in commerce or meets any other jurisdictional tests set by the FTC Act.
This includes the power to enforce a Federal Reserve Board regulation promuigated
under the ECOA, such as Regulation B, in the same manner as if a violation of that
regulation had been a violation of an FTC trade regulation rule.

24.  From at least January 1, 2006 to at least December 31, 2006, Defendants
charged Hispanic applicants higher prices for mortgage loans than non-Hispanic

white applicants. These pricing disparities cannot be explained by any legitimate

underwriting risk factors or credit characteristics of the applicants.
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25. Defendants’ acts and practices alleged in Paragraph 24 constitute
discrimination against applicants with respect to credit transactions on the basis of
national origin in violation of Section 701(a)(1) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C.

§ 1691(a)(1), and Section 202.4(a) of Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. § 202.4(a). Pursuant
to Section 704(c) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. § 1691¢(c), the acts and practices alleged
in Paragraph 24 also constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in violation of
Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

CONSUMER INJURY

26.  Consumers have suffered, and will continue to suffer, substantial injury
as a result of Defendants’ violations of the ECOA, Regulation B, and the FTC Act,
as set forth above.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF
27.  Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this court to

grant injunctive and other ancillary relief to prevent and remedy any violations of

any provision of law enforced by the Commission.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintitf requests that this Court, pursuant to Sections 13(b)
and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b; Section 704(c) of the ECOA, 15
U.S.C. § 1691c(c); and pursuant to the Court’s own equitable powers:
(1) Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the
ECOA, Regulation B and the FTC Act by Defendants;
(2)  Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress mjury to
consumers resulting from Defendants’ violations of the ECOA,
Regulation B, and the FTC Act, including but not limited to,
rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of

monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies; and
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Dated:

(3)  Award Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such
other and additional relief as the Court may determine to be just

and proper.

May _Z__, 2009
Respectfully submitted,
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Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”), for its
complaint alleges that:

1. Plaintiff brings this action under Sections 5(a), 13(b), and 19 of the
Federal Trade Commuission Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), and 57b;
Section 704(c) of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act (“ECOA”), 15 U.S.C,

§ 1691¢(c); and Section 202.16(a)(2) of its implementing Federal Reserve Board

Regulation B (“Regulation B”), 12 C.F.R. § 202.16(a)(2), to obtain a permanent

injunction, consumer redress, disgorgement, and other equitable relief for

Defendants’ violations of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. §§

1691-1691f, and its implementing Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. pt. 202.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,
1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and under 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), 56(a), 57b, and

1691c(c).
3. Venue in the United States District Court for the Central District of
Teliformip e oroner upndor 28 118 0 88 1381 (b and under 1511870 8 53710
DEFENDANTS

4, Defendant Golden Empire Mortgage, Inc. (“GEM”) is a California
corporation that maintains its principal office and place of business in Bakersfield,
California. At all times relevant to this Complaint, GEM has maintained offices and
transacted business in the Central District of California.

5. Defendant Howard D. Kootstra (“Kootstra™) is the sole shareholder,
owner, president, and chief executive officer of GEM. Defendant Kootstra, in his
capacity as the sole shareholder, owner, president, and chief executive officer of
GEM, has formulated, directed, controlled, or had the authority to control, the acts

and practices of GEM, including the acts and practices alleged in this Complaint. At
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all times relevant to this Complaint, Kootstra has resided in the State of California
and has transacted business in the Central District of California.

6. At all times relevant to this complaint, GEM and Kootstra (together, -
*Defendants”) have been “creditors” as defined in Section 702(e) of the ECOA, 15
U.S.C. § 1691a(e), and Section 202.2(/) of Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. § 202.2(/), and
therefore have been required to comply with the applicable provisions of the ECOA
and Regulation B.

COMMERCE

7. The acts and practices of Defendants alleged in this complaint have

been in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44, as amended.
DEFENDANTS’ COURSE OF BUSINESS
3. From at least January 1, 2006 to the present, Defendants have been
regularly engaged in the business of originating and financing mortgage loans. The

majority of Defendants’ business is direct or “retail” mortgage lending, in which

iy Alimatisen L pacidoans Teterners tanmg et fhisie sennmlasag
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loan officers and branch managers at their approximately 45 brariches.

9. Defendants originate numerous types of mortgage loans, such as
Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae loans, subprime loans and Alt-A loans, jumbo loans,
prime and subprime second-lien loans, and government loans such as Federal
Housing Administration and Department of Veterans Affairs loans.

10.  Defendants determine whether applicants are qualified for financing and
set the terms and conditions of any financing to be granted. The vast majority of
Defendants’ direct mortgage loans are funded by, and in the name of, GEM. GEM

has submitted mortgage loan data to the Federal Reserve Board pursuant to the

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, 12 U.S.C. §§ 28012810, since at least 2004,
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11.  Each mortgage loan originated by Defendants’ loan officers and branch
managers has a price that includes both an interest rate and up-front fees. Both the
interest rate and the up-front fees on each loan are determined (1) in part by the
credit characteristics of applicants and the underwriting risk to Defendants (the “risk-
based price”), and (2) in part at the discretion of Defendants’ employee loan officers
and branch managers (the “overage™).

12.  As a matter of policy, Defendants’ loan officers and branch managers, at
their discretion, may charge applicants overages in addition to the risk-based price.
These overages are not based on the underwriting risk or the credit characteristics of
the applicants. Defendants’ loan officers and branch managers may charge
applicants overages through a higher interest rate, higher up-front charges, or both.
This policy of allowing such overages is referred to herein as the “Discretionary
Pricing Policy.” Defendants authorized the Discretionary Pricing Policy.

13. Pursuant to the Discretionary Pricing Policy, Defendants’ loan officers

keep as compensation a portion of whatever overage they charge applicants.

14 The Defendants contract with eack loan officer individually 1o
determine the portion of the overage that constitutes the loan officer’s compensation.

15. Defendants’ branch managers keep as compensation the net profits of a
branch. The higher the overages on each loan originated at a branch, the greater the
branch’s net profits and corresponding branch manager compensation.

16.  The Defendants contract with each branch manager individually to
determine the calculation of the branch’s net profits, which include revenues from
overages.

17.  Pursuant to the Discretionary Pricing Policy, Defendants give their loan
officers and branch managers wide discretion to determine the amount of the overage
imposed on an applicant’s loan. Also pursuant to the Discretionary Pricing Policy,

Defendants place only one limitation on the amount of overage that may be charged
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on a loan: Defendants cap the overage amount at a total of three percent of an
applicant’s loan amount (hereafter “Overage Cap”). However, Defendants’
Discretionary Pricing Policy allows a branch manager or a member of Defendants’
senior management team to grant exceptions to the Overage Cap, resulting in
overages that exceed the three percent Overage Cap.

18.  From at least January 1, 2006 to the present, Defendants did not review,
monitor, examine, or analyze the overages imposed on Hispanic applicants compared
to non-Hispanic white applicants to ensure that loan officers and branch managers
were not unjustifiably charging higher overages to Hispanic applicants. Defendants
also did not review, monitor, examine, or analyze any other aspects or measures of
loan price, such as annual percentage rate, to ensure that loan officers and branch
managers were not unjustifiably charging higher prices to Hispanic applicants.
Defendants also did not review, monitor, examine, or analyze the exceptions granted
to Defendants’ Overage Cap to ensure that branch managers and senior management

were not unjustifiably granting exceptions with more frequency on loans to Hispanic

19.  From at least January 1, 2006 to at least December 31, 2006, Defendants
made exceptions to their Overage Cap for loans originated to Hispanic applicants
substantially and significantly more frequently than they made exceptions to their
Overage Limit for loans originated to non-Hispanic white applicants. Every such
exception resulted in an overage exceeding the three percent Overage Cap.

20.  From at least January 1, 2006 to at least December 31, 2006, Defendants
charged Hispanic applicants, on average, higher prices for their mortgage loans than
non-Hispanic white applicants. These price differentials were caused by Defendants’
Discretionary Pricing Policy. Defendants’ Discretionary Pricing Policy resulted in
Hispanic applicants being charged higher overages because of their national origin.

These disparities in the overages charged are substantial, statistically significant, and
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cannot be explained by factors related to underwriting risk or credit characteristics of
the applicants.

21. Information as to each applicant’s national origin was available and
known to Defendants and their employees, including to the employees who made the
decisions to grant or deny loans and to set or confirm the terms and conditions of
each loan granted.

VIOLATIONS OF THE ECOA. REGULATION B. AND THE FTC ACT

22, Section 701(a)(1) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. § 1691(a)(1), and Section
202.4(a) of Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. § 202.4(a), prohibit a creditor from

discriminating against an applicant with respect to any aspect of a credit transaction

on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, or age
(provided the applicant has the capacity to contract).

23.  Section 704(c) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. § 1691c(c), specifically
empowers the Commission to enforce the ECOA. Under its provisions, Defendants’
violations of the ECOA are deemed to be violations of the FTC Act and are

-~

' enforceable as such by the Commission under thaet Act. Further the Commission i
authorized to use all of its functions and powers under the FTC Act to enforce
compliance with the ECOA by any person, irrespective of whether that person 1s
engaged in commerce or meets any other jurisdictional tests set by the FTC Act.
This includes the power to enforce a Federal Reserve Board regulation promuigated
under the ECOA, such as Regulation B, in the same manner as if a violation of that
regulation had been a violation of an FTC trade regulation rule.

24.  From at least January 1, 2006 to at least December 31, 2006, Defendants
charged Hispanic applicants higher prices for mortgage loans than non-Hispanic

white applicants. These pricing disparities cannot be explained by any legitimate

underwriting risk factors or credit characteristics of the applicants.
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25. Defendants’ acts and practices alleged in Paragraph 24 constitute
discrimination against applicants with respect to credit transactions on the basis of
national origin in violation of Section 701(a)(1) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C.

§ 1691(a)(1), and Section 202.4(a) of Regulation B, 12 C.F.R. § 202.4(a). Pursuant
to Section 704(c) of the ECOA, 15 U.S.C. § 1691¢(c), the acts and practices alleged
in Paragraph 24 also constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in violation of
Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

CONSUMER INJURY

26.  Consumers have suffered, and will continue to suffer, substantial injury
as a result of Defendants’ violations of the ECOA, Regulation B, and the FTC Act,
as set forth above.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF
27.  Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this court to

grant injunctive and other ancillary relief to prevent and remedy any violations of

any provision of law enforced by the Commission.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintitf requests that this Court, pursuant to Sections 13(b)
and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b; Section 704(c) of the ECOA, 15
U.S.C. § 1691c(c); and pursuant to the Court’s own equitable powers:
(1) Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the
ECOA, Regulation B and the FTC Act by Defendants;
(2)  Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress mjury to
consumers resulting from Defendants’ violations of the ECOA,
Regulation B, and the FTC Act, including but not limited to,
rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of

monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies; and
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Dated:

(3)  Award Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such
other and additional relief as the Court may determine to be just

and proper.

May _Z__, 2009
Respectfully submitted,

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION:

DAVID C. SHONKA
Acting General Counsel

é;[ERINE M. WORTEMAN ~—-
JULIE G. BUSH

DAVID 1. MONTEIRO _
kworthman@ftc.gov; jbush@fic.gov;
dmonteiro@fic.gov

Federal Trade Commission

Bureau of Consumer Protection
Division of Financial Practices
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SO0 Pennavivaniz Avenps MW PIL3152

Washington, DT Z0580

Tel: (202) 326-2764 (Worthman)
(202) 326-3608 (Bush)
(202) 326-3792 (Monteiro)

Fax: (202-326-3768

RAYMOND McKOWN (Local Counsel)
rmckown@ftc.gov

California Bar No. 150975

Federal Trade Commission

10877 Wilshire Blvd., Ste. 700

Los Angeles, CA 90024

Tel: (310) 824-4325

Fax: (310) 824-4380

Attorneys for Plaintiff FTC




STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT . MILWAUKEE COUNTY

Aurora Loan Services, LLC

Plaintiff, ' Case No. 06-CV-006769
(";i"( ; T [ P
Jo Ann Dunn ga 1 wbl = 2008 20
Defendant. ' - M.ﬂﬁom‘:r’\cﬁe_t:@h .

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MOTION

This memorandum is submitted in supbort of Defendant Jo Ann Dunn’s Motion to
adjourn the confirmation hearing and to order Plaintiff to review and respond to Defendant’s
request for a loan modification in a manner that is consistent with HAMP.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Ms. Dunn has lived in her home for over 30 years. She currently resides there with her
daughter and two granddaughters. She is employed with Potawatomi Casino and earns
approximately $2067 per month.

In August 2005 Ms. Dunn refinanced into a new mortgage loan with subprime lender
BNC Mortgage' in the amount of $55,000 with an interest rate of 9.85%. In August 2006, less
than a year éﬁer refinancing, the plaintiff initiated foreclosure proceedings.

Ms. Dunn wants to save her home. She attempted a work out after the foreclosure was

filed and started a repayment plan under a chapter 13 bankruptcy in 2007 but eventually,

1BNC Mortgage was a subprime lender subsidiary of Lehman. BNC was closed by Lehman in 2007 and BNC filed
for bankruptcy protection in 2009. MERS as nominee for BNC assigned the mortgage in this case to Plaintiff on 10-

1



apparently due to an increase in her payment amount, Ms. Dunn got behind in the payments and
Plaintiff was able to lift he automatic stay. See Dunn affidavit.

In February of 2009 Ms. Dunn entered into a forbearance plan with Plaintiff. Id. She
made an initial payment of $700 followed by three payments in the amount of $1031.80 for
March, April and May 2009. Id. Ms. Dunn thought that after she made three payments the
plaintiff would provide her with a modification of the mortgage so that she could actually afford
the monthly payments. Id. Instead, the lender told her to make another payment of $1031.80,
which she could not afford to do. Id. Shortly thereafter, Ms. Dunn received a notice in the mail
about the Confirmation Hearing in this case. Id.

Ms. Dunn then went to ACORN.Housing in Milwaukee for assistance with obtaining a
loan modification. See Id. See also Gross Afficavit. On or around June 24, 2009 ACORN
Housing put together a proposal for an affordable loan modification and sent the proposal to
Plaintiff. Id. ACORN Housing indicates that Plaintiff never responded to the proposal and Ms.
Dunn indicates that she never received any response to the proposal. Id.

Plaintiff, Aurora Loan Services became a participating servicer in the Obama
Administration’s Home Affordability Modification Program (HAMP) on April 30 2009, while
Ms. Dunn was paying monthly installments under her forbearance agreement. See Penegor '
Affidavit. The forbearance agreement required payments of $1031.80 which were well above the
31% debt to income ratio required under HAMP. Id. In June 2009, after Aurora Loan Services
became a participant in HAMP, Ms. Dunn, through a housing counselor, made a proposal for an
affordable loan modification. According to ACORN and Ms. Dunn, Plaintiff never responded to

that proposal. See Dunn and Gross Affs.



Ms. Dunn attended the conﬁrmétion hearing on August 31, 2009 and obtained an
extension to October 12, 2009 to attempt to mediate her case with the Milwaukee Foreclosure
Mediation Program (MFMP). See Dunn aff. Ms. Dunn submit her mediation request to MFMP
on or around September 1. Id. On September 30, 2009, Plaintiff’s counsel notified Ms. Dunn
through counsel that Aurora would not agree to mediate the case. See Penegor Aff. Plaintiff’s
counsel also indicated on the same date that Aurora had previously responded to Ms. Dunn’s
request for a modification and indicated that it would provide proof of the same, along with a
payment history, but to date, undersigned defense counsel has not received written confirmation
that Aurora properly reviewed and denied Ms. Dunn’s proposal pursuant to the HAMP
guidelines. Id.

ARGUMENT

The Court should exercise its inherent equitable authority to postpone the confirmation

hearing until Plaintiff, as a HAMP participant, has reviewed and responded to Ms. Dunn’s

application for an affordable loan modification in a manner consistent with the HAMP

guidelines.

Foreclosure proceedings are equitable in nature

Wisconsin courts have long recognized that foreclosure proceedings are equitable in
nature and that the circuit court has the discretion to exercise its equitable power throughout the
proceeding to prevent injustice. See Harvest State Bank v. ROI Investments, v228 Wis. 2d 733,
598 N.W.2d 571 (Ct. App. 1999) citing Family Sav. & Loan Ass’'n v. Barkwood Landscaping
Co., Inc., 93 Wis. 2d 190; 202 (1980); see also Stong v. Catton, 1 Wis. 471, 493 (1853). The

circuit court may exercise it power to provide equitable relief in the absence of a statutory right,



unless there is an express legislative command prohibiting it to act. See Harvest at 739-740.
The court in this case should exercise its inherent equitable power to postpone the
confirmation of the sheriff’s sale until plaintiff, a participant in HAMP, conducts a review of Ms.
Dunn’s financial situation to determine whether she qualifies for an affordable loan modification

under the United State government’s HAMP program.

The U.S. Department of the Treasure has established a Home Affordable Modification
Program (HAMP) pursuant to section 101 and 109 of the Emergency Stabilization Act of 2008,
section 109 of the Act has been amended by section 7002 of the American Recovery and
* Reinvestment Act of 2009. HAMP is designed to prdvide affordable loan modification and
other foreclosure prevention services to qualifying homeowners to prevent foreclosure.

Plaintiff, as servicer for the mortgage loan at issue in this case, entered into a
Participation Agreement with the United States Treasury (through the Federal National Mortgage
Association know as “Fannie Mae”) under the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 as
a condition to its parent company, Aurora Lending, (formerly Lehman Bank) taking millions of
dollars of TARP (Troubled Asset Relief Fund) money. See Penegor Aff Ex E.

As a participating servicer in HAMP, Plaintiff is bound by the contractual obligations set
out in the Servicer Participation Agreement ‘“Participation Agreement” which it entered into on
April 30, 2009 (See Penegor Aff., Exhibit A). Pursuant to paragraph 1.A. under the Participation
Agreement, Plaintiff “shall perform the loan modification and other foreclosure prevention
services ...” described in the Agreement, the “Program Guidelines”, the “Supplemental
Directives” and the “Program Documentation”. Under paragraph 2.A. under the Participation

Agreement, Plaintiff



shall perform the Services for all mortgage loans its services, whether it services

such mortgage loans for its own account or for the account of another party,

including any holders of mortgage-backed securities (each such other party, an

“investor”). Servicer shall use reasonable efforts to remove all prohibitions or

impediments to its authority, and use reasonable efforts to obtain all third party

consents and waivers that are required, by contract or law, in order to effectuate

any modification of a mortgage loan under the Program.

Plaintiff is required to evaluate a borrower for eligibility under HAMP

Under HAMP, a servicer is required to suspend foreclosure proceedings and is
specifically prohibited from proceeding with a foreclosure sale until the borrower has been
evaluated for the HAMP program and if eligible, offered to participate in the program. See
Penegor Aff. Exhibit B.

The Supplemental Directive 09-01 Page 14 (Penegor Aff., Ex. B attached hereto and

located at https://www.hmpadmin.com/portal/docs/hamp_servicer/sd0901.pdf:) , states:
Témporary Suspension of Foreclosure Proceedings

To ensure that a borrower currently at risk of foreclosure has the opportunity to apply for
the HAMP, servicers should not proceed with a foreclosure sale until the borrower has
been evaluated for the program and, if eligible, an offer to participate in the HAMP has
been made. Servicers must use reasonable efforts to contact borrowers facing foreclosure
to determine their eligibility for the HAMP, including in-person contacts at the servicer’s
discretion. Servicers must not conduct foreclosure sales on loans previously referred to
foreclosure or refer new loans to foreclosure during the 30-day period that the borrower
has to submit documents evidencing an intent to accept the Trial Period Plan offer.
Except as noted herein, any foreclosure sale will be suspended for the duration of the
Trial Period Plan, including any period of time between the borrower’s execution of the
Trial Period Plan and the Trial Period Plan effective date.

Further, the HAMP Frequently Asked Question section available for servicers on the HAMP

information website located at



https:/www.hmpadmin.com/portal/docs/hamp_servicer/hampfags.pdf has the following

question and answer:
Must servicers suspend foreclosure or not initiate foreclosure for all

borrowers who are potentially eligible for the HAMP?

To ensure that a borrower currently in foreclosure or at risk of foreclosure

has the opportunity to apply for a HAMP modification, servicers should

not proceed with a foreclosure sale until the borrower has been evaluated

for the program. Additionally, servicers are strongly encouraged not to

initiate foreclosure until a borrower has been evaluated and determined to

be ineligible for the program or the borrower fails to respond to a Trial

Period Plan offer that has been made by the servicer.

In June of 2009, Ms. Dunn submit a proposal for an affordable loan modification to
Plaintiff and both the housing counselor and Ms. Dunn indicate that they never received any
response from Plaintiff to the proposal. Based on the information available at this time, it
appears that Plaintiff never evaluated Ms. Dunn for a HAMP muodification and proceeded to
schedule a confirmation of the foreclosure sale in August 2009 without completing a HAMP
evaluation.

Defendant’s counsel has requested from Plaintiff’s counsel a copy of a Plaintiff’s
payment history and written verification that a HAMP evaluation was completed (See Penegor
Aff. Ex. D) on Ms. Dunn, however to date no payment history or verification of a HAMP
evaluation has been provided. If Plaintiff did not evaluate Ms. Dunn for a HAMP modification,
then Plaintiff should not have proceeded to Sheriff’s sale or Confirmation of Sale. Postponing

the confirmation hearing to ensure that Ms. Dunn was either properly reviewed under HAMP or

if not, is given an opportunity to be reviewed under HAMP would serve to perverse justice and



would not harm Plaintiff, in particular, considering that Plaintiff purchased the property for only
$19,250 (valued at $25,000) compared to the foreclosure judgment of over $60,000.

Additional provisions of the HAMP Supplemental Directive confirm Plaintiff’s
obligation under HAMP to contact and review Defendant’s information to determine if a HAMP
modification is attainable. Under the section called “Modification Process” the Supplemental
Directive describes a servicer’s duty to explain HAMP and work with the borrower if the
borrower contacts the servicer to inquire about the availability of HAMP. The Supplemental
Directive 09-01 Page 13 (Penegor Aff. Exhbit B) states:

Modification Process

Borrower Solicitation

Servicers should follow their existing practices, including complying with any express
contractual restrictions, with respect to solicitation of borrowers for modifications.

A servicer may receive calls from current or delinquent borrowers directly inquiring about
the availability of the HAMP. In that case, the servicer should work with the borrower to
obtain the borrower’s financial and hardship information and to determine if the HAMP is
appropriate. If the servicer concludes a current borrower is in danger of imminent default, the
servicer must consider an HAMP modification.

When discussing the HAMP, the servicer should provide the borrower with information
designed to help them understand the modification terms that are being offered and the
modification process. Such communication should help minimize potential borrower
confusion, foster good customer relations, and improve legal compliance and reduce other
risks in connection with the transaction. A servicer also must provide a borrower with clear
and understandable written information about the material terms, costs, and risks of the
modified mortgage loan in a timely manzer to enable borrowers to make informed decisions.
The servicer should inform the borrower during discussions that the successful completion of
a modification under the HAMP will cancel any assumption feature, variable or step-rate
feature, or enhanced payment options in the borrower’s existing loan, at the time the loan is
modified.

Servicers must have adequate staffing, resources, and facilities for receiving and processing
the HAMP documents and any requested information that is submitted by borrowers.



Servicers must also have procedures and systems in place to be able to respond to inquiries
and complaints about the HAMP. Servicers should ensure that such inquiries and complaints
are provided fair consideration, and timely and appropriate responses and resolution.

A servicer is also required to follow strict document retention policies related to the recéipt
and review of information related to the HAMP review process, including the outcome of the
evaluation for modification and specific justification with supporting details if the request for
modification under the HAMP was denied. The Supplemental Directive 09-01 Page 13 (Penegor
Aff. Ex. B) states:

Document Retention

Servicers must retain all documents and information received during the process of
determining borrower eligibility, including borrower income verification, total

' monthly mortgage payment and total monthly gross debt payment calculations, NPV
calculations (assumptions, inputs and outputs), evidence of application of each step
of the standard waterfall, escrow analysis, escrow advances, and escrow set-up. The
servicers must retain all documents and information related to the monthly payments
during and after the trial period, as well as incentive payment calculations and such
other required documents.

Servicers must retain detailed records of borrower solicitations or borrower-initiated
inquiries regarding the HAMP, the outcome of the evaluation for modification under
the HAMP and specific justification with supporting details if the request for
modification under the HAMP was denied. Records must also be retained to
document the reason(s) for a trial modification failure. If an HAMP modification is
not pursued when the NPV result is “negative,” the servicer must document its
consideration of other foreclosure prevention options. If a borrower under an HAMP
modification loses good standing, the servicer must retain documentation of its
consideration of the borrower for other loss mitigation alternatives. Servicers must
retain required documents for a period of seven years from the date of the document
collection.



Accordiﬁgly, Plaintiff should have available documentatioﬁ that can readily be made available to
Defendant if in fact, as Plaintiff alleges, it properly reviewed Ms. Dunn’s application for
modification and denial of the same.

CONCLUSION

Plaintiff is a participant in HAMP since April 30, 2009 and is a subsidiary of a company
that received taxpayer TARP funds. As a participant in HAMP, Plaintiff has a duty to follow the
HAMP guidelines, which require Plaintiff to evaluate Defendant’s request for a modiﬁcation.
There is a question of fact about whether Plaintiff properly evaluated Defendant’s request in June
2009 prior to proceeding to Sheriff sale and/or confirmation of sale. Plaintiff purchased the
property at Sheriff’s sale for amount of $19,250 despite owning a note with a principal balance of
approximately $55,000 and a judgment of over $60,000.

Ms. Dunn stands to lose her home of 30 years. Ms. Dunn was in a forbearance agreement
from February through May 2009 which she could not afford and then requested a loan
modification in June 2009 with the assistance of ACORN Housing after Plainfiff became a
HAMP participant. It appears that Plaintiff never responded to Ms. Dunn’s request for a
modification under HAMP. |

Foreclosure actions are equitable in natizre and the court has the equitable power to
prevent injustice. If Ms. Dunn qualifies for a HAMP modification but is prevented from
obtaining one because Plaintiff failed to properly review her application for the same, an injustice
will be done. There should be no reason why a large sophisticated corporation such as Plaintiff
cannot easily produce the documentation requested or, in the alternative, timely process a

modification application. The court can and should take judicial notice of the current foreclosure



crisis and recognize that such extraordinary circumstances warrant the court’s exercise of its
equitable power that may cause it to go outside “normal” everday practice. There are not normal
times. Ms. Dunn requests that the confirmation hearing be postponed and Plaintiff ordered to
produce proof that it reviewed Ms. Dunn’s loan modification proposal in a manner consistent
with HAMP prior to confirming the sale of this property or in the alternative, if Plaintiff has not
already done so, that Plaintiff be ordered to review Ms. Dunn’s proposal for a loan modification
consistent with HAMP.

Dated this 6™ day of October, 2009.

LEGAL AID SOCIETY OF MILWAUKEE INC.

By: NMW

State Bar No. 1027617
521 N. 8" Street,
Milwaukee, WI 53233
(414) 727-5300
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STATE OF OHIO, exrel. ..« ) CASENO
RICHARD CORDRAY¥. e Judge: TIMOTHY MCCORMICK
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF OHIO
615 W. SUPERIOR AVE 11" Fioor CV 09 708888
CLEVELAND, OHIO 44113-1899 ;
)
PLAINTIFF, )
v, )
) COMPLAINT, REQUEST
) FOR DECLARATORY
AMERICAN HOME MORTGAGE ) AND INJUNCTIVE
SERVICING, INC ) RELIEF, CONSUMER
c/o Statutory Agent ) DAMAGES, CIVIL
CT Corporation System ) PENALTIES AND OTHER
1300 E. 9" St. ) APPROPRIATE RELIEF
Cleveland, OH 44114 }
) JURY DEMAND ENDORSED
HEREON

JURISDICTION

Plaintiff, State of Ohio, by and through Counsel, the Ohio Attorney General Richard
Cordray, having reasonablé cause to believe Defendant American Home Mortgage
Services, Inc., (“AHMSI” or “Defendant”) has committed violations of Ohio’s
consumer protection laws, brings this action in the public interest and on behalf of the
State of Ohio under the authority vested in him by the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices
Act, R.C. § 1345.01 et seq.

Plaintiff, State of Ohio, by and through Counsel, Ohio Attorney General Richard
Cordray brings this action on behalf of the State of Ohio based upon Defendant
AHMST’s violations of the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act, O.R.C. § 1345.01, et.

seq. (hereinafter “CSPA™).



Defendant AHMSI, at all relevant times hereto, was a Texas corporation, with iis
principal place of business located at: 1525 S. Belt Line Rd. Coppell, Texas 75019-
4913.

Defendant AHMSI, at all relevant times hereto, was licensed as a second mortgage
fender, License SM.501517.000, by the Ohio Department of Commerce, Division of
Financial Institutions.

Defendant AHMSI is a debt-coliector as contemplated by the Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act (FDCPA), 15 U.S.C. 1692 et seq.

The actions of Defendant, hereinafter described, have occurred in the State of Ohio
and Cuyahoga County and other Chio counties.

At all relevant times hereto, Defendant was a “supplier” as that term is defined in
R.C. § 1345.01{C) as Defendant engaged in the business of effecting consumer
transactions by servicing residential mortgage loans, held by individuals residing in
Cuyahoga County and other counties in the State of Ohio, for purposes that are
primarily personal, family or household within the meaning specified in R.C. §
1345.01(A) and (D).

Jurisdictic;n over the subject matter of this action lies with this Court pursuant to R.C.
§ 1345.04 of the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act (CSPA).

This Court is the proper venue to hear this case pursuant to Ohio Civ. R. 3(B}(1)-(3),
in that some of the transactions complained of herein, and out of which this action

arose, occurred in Cuyahoga County, Ohio.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant AHMSI's mortgage servicing obligations are set forth in various contracts,
commonly referred to as a Pooling and Servicing Agreements [PSA], between
Defendant and the true owner of the underlying mortgage loan notes, typically a trust
or pool containing thousands of securitized residential mortgage loans.

Defendant AHMSI services over 12,000 subprime, alt-A, and prime mortgage loans
in Ohto, with most of the financed properties owner-occupied with the residential
mortgage loans secured by a first mortgage lien.

In connection with the servicing of residential mortgage loans Defendant AHMSI
accepts, applies, and distributes mortgage loan payments made by Ohio residents.
For many of the loans, Defendant AHMSI operates as a debt collector as that term is
defined in the Federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. 1692a(6).

In connection with the servicing of Qhio residential mortgage loans, Defendant
AHMSi acquired servicing rights to residential mortgage loans already in default
from third parties, inciuding but not limited to Option One Mortgage Corporation.
Defendant AHMSI, among other services, offers several different loss mitigation
options to borrowers in default, or on the verge of default, including repayment plans,
loan modifications, security retention agreements and forbearance agreements.

For some borrowers in economic distress Defendant AHMSI has the borrower enter
into a Loan Modification Agreement that, inter alia, contains provisions that: require
the borrower to waive all {egal defenses, rights to set-off, and all counterclaims
against the note holder and loan servicer, require the borrower to waive any challenge

or right to contest the foreclosure process, including challenges based upon acts
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18.

occurring subsequent 1o the agreement commitied by the loan servicer, its attorneys,
the foreclosure trustee or any person acting on behalf of the loan servicer; require the
borrower to agree that AHMSI can terminate the agreement and recommence
foreclosure proceedings without any notice to the borrower if AHMSI believes that
the borrower has breached the loan modification agreement; and, reserves exclusively
to AHMSI the determination as to when required payments and documents have been
received. [Sample Loan Modification Agreement, with consumer information
redacted, is attached as complaint Exhibit A}.

For some borrowers in economic distress Defendant AHMSI has the borrower enter
into a Forbearance Agreement that, inter alia, contains provisions that: require the
borrower to agree in advance to pay any and all charges imposed by AHMSI,
including charges not included in the Forbearance Agreement, and also including
charges not vet incurred or billed by AHMSI, for services rendered by or on behalf of
AHMS], including attorney fees: reserves to AHMSI the “sole and absolute
discretion” to increase the amounts the borrower is required to pay pursuant {o the
Forbearance Agreement; permits AHMSI to continue to prosecute any pending
foreclosure related motions, including motions that may result in a judgment or sale
order against the borrower; and, require the borrower to waive all defenses, rights to
set-off and counterclaims for any and all misconduct arising at any time in connection
with the origination and servicing of the mortgage loan. {Sample Forbearance
Agreement, with borrower information redacted, attached as Complaint Exhibit B].
For some borrowers whose security instrument payment obligations on restdential

mortgage loans have been discharged in bankruptey, Defendant AHMSI has



permitted them to remain in the property if the borrowers enter into a Security
Retention Agreement that, inter alia; require the borrower to agree in advance to pay
any and all charges imposed by AHMSI, including charges not included in the
Security Retention Agreement, and also including charges not yet incurred or billed
by AHMSI, for services rendered by or on behalf of AHMSI, including attorney fees;
reserves to AHMSI the “sole and absolute discretion” {0 increase the amounts the
borrower is required to pay pursuant to the Security Retention Agreement; and,
require the borrower to waive all defenses, rights to set-off or counterclaims they may
have related to the loan or the property. {Sample Security Retention Agreement, with
borrower information redacted, attached as Complaint Exhibit C]

In connection with the servicing of residential mortgage loans in Qhio, Defendant
AHMSI maintains a customer service department that Ohio residents are directed to
call with questions or concerns about their mortgage loan. Consumers have
complained to the Ohio Attorney General that Defendant’s employees or agents are
unable to communicate meaningfully with consumers regarding those consumers’
accounts, and that Defendant’s call center workers do not return calls or respond to
repeated inquiries.

In connection with the servicing of Ohio residential mortgage loans, Defendant
AHMSI has engaged in the following acts and practices: provided incompetent,
inadequate and inefficient customer service; lost documents submitted by borrowers
requesting loss mitigation assistance; failed to respond, or timely respond, 10
borrower requests for assistance; failed to offer, or timely offer, affordable loss

mitigation options to borrowers.
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In connection with the servicing of Ohio residential mortgage loans Defendant
AHMSI has engaged in the following acts and practices: required borrowers to sign
loan modifications, forbearance agreements, and/or security retention agreements that
contain illegal and unfair provisions and are unconscionably one-sided in Defendant’s
favor; purchased forced-place insurance to cover homeowners’ dwellings, when such
insurance was not necessary or justified and where such insurance was duplicative of

valid insurance that existed to cover the homeowners’ residences.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Violations of the Consumer Sales Practices Act

Plaintiff, State of Ohio, ex rel. Richard Cordray, Attorney General incorporates by
reference, as if completely rewritten herein, the allegations set forth in paragraphs
One through Twenty One (1-21) of this Complaint.

Defendant AHMSI has engaged in unfair and deceptive acts and practices in violation
of R.C. 1345.02, 1345.03 and 1345.031 by its Inadequate, incompetent, and
inefficient handling of complaints, inquiries, disputes, and requests for information
and assistance in connection with its servicing of Ohio residential mortgage loans,
including but not limited to, i.e. the failure to respond to consumers’ inquiries or the
inability of Defendant’s employees or out-sourced agents to communicate
meaningfully with Ohioans.

Defendant AMMSI has engaged in unfair and deceptive acts and practices in violation
of R.C. 1345.02, 1345.03 and 1345.031, in connection with the servicing of loans for

residences within the State of Ohio by, inter alia; requiring consumers to agree to
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27.

unconscionable mandatory attorney fee clauses, requiring consumers to sign
agreements containing unfair and unreasonable releases and waivers of rights.
Defendant AHMSI has engaged in unfair and deceptive acts and practices in violation
of R.C. 1345.02, 1345.03, 1345.031 in connection with presenting proposed loan
modifications to borrowers who are in default or who have contacted Defendant
AHMSI due to the borrower having difficulty making their loan payments: by
misrepresenting the terms of offered loan modifications; requiring borrowers to sign
loan modifications that are unconscionably one-sided in Defendant AHMS!'s favor.
Such acts and practices are unfair and deceptive and in violation of the Ohio
Consumer Sales Practices Act, R.C. 1345.01, er seq. and in violation of the Ohio
Administrative Code 109: 4-3-28 (Unconscionable Terms in Home Mortgage
l.oans). Household Realty Corp. v. Dowling, 40 Ohio Misc. 2d 4, 531 N.E.2d 786
(1988).

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Unfair and Deceptive Loan Modification Terms

Plaintiff, State of Ohio, ex rel. Richard Cordray, Attorney General incorporates by
reference, as if completely rewritten herein, the allegations set forth in paragraphs
One through Twenty One (1- 21) of this Complaint.

Defendant AHMSI has engaged in unfair, deceptive and unconscionable acts and
practices in violation of Sections 1345.02, 1345.03 and1345.031 and Ohio
Administrative Code 109:4-3-28 (C) (8) in connection with Loan Modification
Agreements, Security Retention Agreements, and Forbearance Agreements entered

into with Ohio consumers that contain terms that violate the Ohio Consumer Sales



Practices Act. Those terms include without limitation: requiring the borrower to
waive all legal defenses, rights to set-off and all counterclaims for any and all
misconduct arising at any {ime in connection with the origination and servicing of the
mortgage loan against the note holder and loan servicer; requiring the borrower to
waive any challenge or right to contest the foreclosure process; requiring the
borrower to agree that AHMSI! can terminate the agreement and recommence
foreclosure without notice; reserving exclusively to AHMSI the determination as to
when required payments and documents have been received; requiring the borrower
to agree in advance to pay all charges imposed by AHMSI, including charges not
included in the Forbearance Agreement or not yet incurred or billed by AHMSI,
including attorney fees; reserving to AHMSI the “sole and absolute discretion” to
increase the amounts the consumer is required to pay pursuant to the Forbearance
Agreement; or permitting AHMSI to continue to prosecute any pending foreclosure

related motions that may result in a judgment or sale order against the consumer.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court:

ISSUE A PERMANENT INJUNCTION enjoining Defendant AHMSI, its agents,
servants, representatives, salespeople, employees, successors and assigns and all
persons acting in concert or participating with it, directly or indirectly, from
engaging in the acts or practices of which Plaintiff complains and from further
violating the Consumer Sales Practices Act (CSPA), R.C. 1345.01 et seq.

ISSUE A PERMANENT INJUNCTION enjoining Defendant AHMSI from

enforcing any provision in any agreement it has with borrowers that the Court



determines to violate the law, and further to ORDER Defendant AHMSI to provide
written notice of those unenforceable provisions to all borrowers who have entered
such Agreements.

ISSUE A DECLARATORY JUDGMENT declaring that each act or practice
described in Plaintiffs’ Complaint violates the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act,
R.C. 1345.01 et seq., in the manner set forth in this Complaint.

ORDER Defendant AHMSI pursuant to the R.C. 1345.07(B) to reimburse all
consumers damaged by its unfair, deceptive, and unconscionable acts or practices,
including non-economic damages.

ORDER Defendant AHMSI to comply with all HAMP Participating Servicer
requirements, including the requirement that AHMSI perform HAMP analyses
upon consumers’ mortgage loan notes, and reform those mortgage loans to
restrictions and conditions determined by the Court to be fair, reasonable and
appropriate.

Further ORDER Defendant AHMSI to notify all of its subsidiaries, including
foreign operation call centers, independent contractors, employees and agents of
AHMSI of the terms and conditions of any court ordered relief in this action.
ASSESS, FINE, AND IMPOSE upon Defendant AHMSI civil penalties of Twenty
Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) per violation of 1345.01 et seq. pursuant to
R.C. 1345.07(D).

ORDER, as a means of insuring compliance with this Court’s Order and with the
consumer protection laws of Ohio, that the Defendant AHMSI maintain in its

possession and control for a period of five (5) years all business records relating to
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Defendant AHMSI's servicing of residential mortgage loans in Ohio, and to permit

the Ohio Attorney General or his representative, upon reasonable twenty-four (24)

hour notice, to inspect and/or copy any and all such records.

GRANT the Ohio Attorney General his costs in bringing this action.

ORDER Defendant AHMSI to pay all court costs.

GRANT such other relief as the Court deems to be just, equitable and appropriate.

10

Respectfully submitted

RICHARD CORDRAY
Ohio Attorney General

(/'AY‘"{LO -h . / L/ Guu;’:
Thomas McGuire, Esq. (0007121}
Senior Assistant Attorney General
Consumer Protection Section
615 Superior Ave, 11% Floor
Cleveland, OH 44113
Phone 216-787-3030
FAX 216-787-3480
Thomas.meguire@ohioattorneygeneral.gov
Counsel for Plaintiff
State of Ohio



DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Please take notice that Plaintiff State of Ohio ex rel. Cordray demands a trial by
jury in this action.
Respectfully submitted,

RICHARD CORDRAY
ATTORNEY GENERAL

! 1 10
[/’éﬁw{. b : /L/ éﬁlvzr‘J

THOMAS D. McGUIRE (0007121)
Senior Assistant Attorney General
Consumer Protection Section
State Office Bldg., 11th Fl.
615 W. Superior Ave.
Cleveland, OH 44113-1899
(216) 787-3030

11
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Loan#
MIN #

| LOAN MORIFICATION AGREEMENT
Freviding for 6 Month Fized 5% Intarcst Rate)

Thls Losa ent (this “Agreement™), mado 33 of the 15t day of August 2008, (the “Effective

Date™ {collectivealy, “Borrowres”) and Americwa Home Mortgegs Servicing, Inc., 25 servicer,

Loag Servicer”), medifies (1) the morigags, deed of must, or security deed (the *Security Inswument™) datzd

(2) the promissory note (the “Note™), bewring the same dite as, and secured by, the Security Instrument

(Borrowu’s cbligation wader the Note, Secority Instrument and this Agreement hereinafer refeyyed to as the
whlch 3 Inswement covers the real and personal property located at {ENERISINEIEND

erty Address)

mors dosm‘bcd In the Security Instrument and defined theredn as the “Property.” Al capitalized tenas in this
Agrezment shall have the seme meanings as set forth in the Note and Security Instrument, unless defiped in this
Agmancnt,aﬂ schedoles and ehibits sttached 1o this Agrecorent are incorporated imto and mede part of this
Agreement; snd all geferences to this Agreement nclude the schedules 208 a@‘bm ’

chcnndmnou of the mutual promdses and agreemeonts exchanged, Loen Servicer and Borrower agree that
the Notz and Seeucity Instrument shall be modified hereby as follows:

I Asof thoEﬁ'mDam,mcmcumPaﬁblemdxttcNm md the Ssewrdty Instromen (ﬁze*‘Ncw
Principel Balancs™ is U.S. ISR consisting of the uupaid smoun(s) loaned to Bosrower by Leader
plus 2y sequed sad wipsid futerest and other emounts capitzlized as set forth in Schedule "A,” attached
hercto wad meds & paxtherect.

2 mwerpromim wpaychchmchalBalmco, plus interest, to the arder of Loan Sapvicer. Jnrerest
veﬁilbe sbarged en the New Principal Balance ot the yearly rate of 5.00% (the “Mod Rate”) for the sixty
- (60) moath period fom the Effective Dete, up to and including July 31, 2013 (the *Mod Peried™), at which
ﬁmc the inmarest rate shall revert 1 the rate as set forth in the Note (the “Note Rate™, as fimther provided
bclow If the ot is & fixed rats note, the Nota Rate shall be the rate set forth in the Note from the
fration of the Tuterest Only Period ot all sums evidsaned by the Now are paid in full, Ifthe Note ds an
adjustzble zate note, the Note Rate shall be the yate that is scheduled o go into effect on the Change Date
nmfcuowmgﬁxeanﬂofthslnmmly?uiod, mnd s thereader adjustsd (all in sccordsuce with the
pmzsms of the Nots); however, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Mod Bate shail eantinue in effect
mt‘hc axplration of the Inwrest Qnly Pariod vntil said Change Date {such petiod, the “Tramsition
iod™), During the Mod Pericd and the Trwosition Period, ns applieabls, Borrower will make wonthly
pa:,mems of principal and interest in the smount of U.S, {the “Mod Pryment™); provided, that the
twoModPaymmtsdneforAuguszl 2008, and September 1, 2008, are made b & Jump fum upon
execution of this Agreement (the “Mod Start Payment™), AS MORE PARTICULARY SET FORTH IN
PARAGRAFH 7, THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE VOID AND NOT TAKE EFFECT UNLESS
THE MOD S'rAR'I’ PAYMENT IN THE FORM OF A CASHIER'S CRECK OR CERTIFIED
FIUNDS , AND THIS AGRZEMENT, ARE RECEIVED ON OR BEFORE SEPTEMBER 19, 2008,

A the Mod Stan Pavetent 1§ mude, 06 next 608 Hod Doyment will be dus Detober, 1, 2008, Begining
cm {a) Augmst 1, 2013, with respect to @ Note that 5 a ﬁ:::é'*“ nots, and {‘.:} e frst day of the menth
fouov.fmg the cxpnatum of the Tragsiden Pesiod, with respect o a Nots that is 2n adjustable rats Note, and
i either Gase contipuing fhereafier on the same day of sach succteding month untl the New Prinipal
Balance and ipterest are paid in full, the monthly payment wiil consist of principal and intérest at the Note

LOAN MODEFTCATION Amm {80 Month Fixox s%;-sw‘mww-.-mm Ltrwment Form 1(BI90%)  (Papel)
Borrgwer ; Hals harey .
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Rate in an amount necessary o amortize the New Principal Balance, as then in effect, over the remaining
term of the Loan, Loan Servicer will notify Borrower of the amount of the new menthly payment prior to
te end of the Mod Peciod or Treusition Period, 25 applicable, If oo ST (e “Menaity Date™),
Bbrrower ill owes amounes under the Note snd the Sagurity. fnstrament, a3 ameaded by this Agreement,
3}:mw=: will pay these axmovnts in full on the Matwrity Date.

pad

Bt Wil somply with &l covenens, sgroment, end résuirsments of Mow mad Security Instumear,
chuding withomt limitadon, Borowe's covenamts and agremmens W waie all payments of @wen
Surance premiums, nitstemente gsorow ltvms, wpetnds, exd 4l ¢ter poyment dat Bomwww s
bligated to make under the Securiy Instument however, the following terms and provisions are
cenceled, null and void, during tae Mod Period and the Transition Perlod, as applicable:

N arE i

(&) ail.terms and provisions of the Note and Secwrity Instrument (if eny} providing for, implementing,
or relating 1o, auy change or adjustment in the rate of interest payable mder the Note; and

& allwrms ad provisions of ey adjustable puse rider, or other instrument or document (if any) thar
is effixed o, wholly or pariially incerparated mto, or is pagt o the Note or Security Invgument
e that comtadins any such terms and provislons as these referred t in (2) above,

4, Bpomower mnderstands, acknowledges and agress that:

@ All the righrs and remedies, stipuladons, and conditicns comtained In the Security Insgument
relating to defeult in the making of payments wnder the Nete and Seerity Instrament shall also
apply to dethult in the making of the modified payments under this Agreement.

&) Except as herein modified, il covenents, agrekments, stipulations, and conditions ia the Notz aud
Security Instumem shall be and remsin o full force end effect amd nome of Boruwer's
obligations or Habilities under the Note and Security Instwument shall be diminished or released by
uiy provisions bereof, nor shall this Agresment in any way impair, diménish, or affect any of Loz
Servicer's or Note Holder's rights or remedies wader the Note exd Sesscity [nsovznend, whather
such rights or remedios sisy thare under o by operation of law. Alse, all rights of recourse o
whith Loas Servicstr and Note Holder are presently entitled against the Propesty, Bomower, my
other property or any other persons in axy way oblizated for, or Lable on, tha Note md Sectity
Instrument, are exprossly teserved by Lomn Servicer ¢ud Note Holder, -~

]

{&)  Borrowsr has no right of set-off ¢r counerciain against Mot Holder or Loan Services, or any
| defenss to th obligations of tho Note of Security Instrumenr.

(@  Nothing in this Agreement shall be understood or construed to be 2 satisfaction or release o whole
| orinpa ofths Not and Seewity Tnstusmert

(80  In-addition to aud simultaneously with Borrower's tmonthly paymens o4 eot forth in paragraph 2
| above, Borrower shall ba required pay to Lean Servicer, narll such fime &y the New Principal
! Baltnee and intersst are paid in full, » sum 1 provids for payment of amounts due for () yearly

taxes and assessments which may zttain priority over the Security Insorument as a Hen o the
i Property, sud (i) yestiy hazsrd or property insurance premiums, all in accotdants with the %rmos
! tnd conditions of the Secvrity Instument. A waiver of this requirsment by Loan Servicer shall
| not construta & waiver of such requirement & any futwre dats, and Loan Servicar specifically
| reserves the riphe o its sole and absohdr discretion, ( impose such requirement ar any thue tpon
! wriiten actics to BaTower.

i
o Bozrower siadl make Znd exaouts such ofser docniients of PEDETS 85 WY DE NECESSETY OF Toquired
i o sffectuate the {erms and conditions af'this Aereament
!
5. Bomowss and Losn Servicer undarsmnd, stimowledge and agres that:

LOAN MODTFICATION ACREENMENT (60 Macts Flesd S¥wSisglo FatilymmaRovisl lastroment Yorm 1 @MY ol
Borrower initials here:
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@ I foreciosure pmmdmgs have been commenced with respect to the Loan, upon payment of the
Mod Start Payment and Logn Servicer's peceipt of this Agrectnent, fully executed, Loan Servicer
shall feroear from taking any further action i conneenidn with &y such foreclosms proceeding.

{

l

i

! Ts consideration of Lender's forbeasancs, Borzower ner&hy xgresly waives the cight to
J ehallenge or copiest the freelosare process mitieed by Leas Servicer, Lozn Servicer's
ztarney sndler (e forstiosure trustee, inauding sl acls vr cmissions prive (0 or sebsequent
| 1o this Azreement, whether such 2cis or omissions were periormed by Loan Servicer, Losh
Servicer's attoroey; the fereclosure trustee, endior poy party sching ou bokalf of the Loan
S&n’i&r. Loan Servicer's attorney and/or the foreciosure trustee. Bomower admit and
recognizes thet apy and all posipdnernents of a foreciosure sule, mads Gring the ferme of this
Agreement or in tnticipetion of this Agresment, are done by mutal eonsent of Borrower and
Loan Servicer and that o the extent allowed by spplicabls law the foceclosure sale may be
posiponed from time 1o time ugtl] the josm is fully reinstated or the foreclosure ssle iy
: consummated,

)] Tims is of the essease of this Agresment, in particultr the recsipt by Loan Servicer of this A gresment
{fully exesmed by Bomower and any Nog-Obligor Mortgagors) and the Mod Start Payuenz. There
ars 0o grace periods with respect 1o the Mod Puyment due under this Agreement, and
hilare to make tmely payments a5 specified in paragraph 2 constitntes a breach of the
terms of this Agreement Notwithstanding the above, late charpes as specified iy the Loan
Documents will continge i acerue 28 allowed by applicable law.

©  IfBorower fails to make any of the ptyments specified in paragraph 2 on tho due dates and ln the
amount stated, or otheywise fails to comply with cach and afl of the terms and conditions herein,
Loxn Servicer, at hs sole option, mny ternenate this Agroement without fither motics to
Bemower. In such case, 2il amounts thet are owing wnder the Note and Security Instrument, as
tmemdad by this Agreement, shatl hesome immediately due and payable, and Loan Servicer shelj
be permitted to exercise tuy and alf rights and remedies provided for iu the Loan Documents,

! including, but not limited to, immediste commencement of 3 fareclosurs action without fxther

! notice to Borrower, andlor resumption of & pending foreclosure action withour further notice to
Borrower, and/or conducting a pending foreclosure sals without ﬁnﬁz:rnoriccm Borrower.

(d  Loma Sexvicer represents that it has the aa:hcn:ym merlmo this Agresment on behalf of the
T Note Holder.

(8  The terms, clauses, conditions and provisiens of this Agreement are binding upon and shall fyre 1o
the benefit of oll assignses, mmmmmmmm
heirs, devisees, 2nd lagatees of each of the partiss hereto.

;) a@ruao&mmﬁmmhmmmmmmmmwm
the pasties with reference w the subiest mater hersod, end suparsedes any prier sgreement, otal or
writen, with respect thereto; and, i0 entering o this Agresment, no party is relying upon ay
represéniation, waranty, agrotmert, of covenants not setforth heqem.

This Agreement may be signed 1 o6e or mors counterparts, cach of which shall be deemed sa
original but all of whick together shall constitute one and the same Agresment

6. To the extent that any word, phrase, clavse, or sentance of this Agresment shall be formd to be Tegal or
mmforawble for any reason, surh word, phrese, clause, or sentence shall be modified or deleted In sach a
manner 5o 2310 ek the Agreement, a3 50 medified, legal and enforesable under appHeable lav, provided
what should such modification or c‘-e:t:t:"'“ materizily diminien the bemeSt ofthis Aemmenerw =y cilem
Servicer, Mote Holder or Bogowes, the Agrsement shall be of ne forcs or effeet and the ~elanonshm of
Loan Servicer, Now Halder and Borrower shall be entirely governed by the provisions of tae Notw snd
Security Instroment

-l

LOAN MODIFICATION AGREEMENT (60 Mexth Fixed 5% y~3iags Funity—aHMST Lostinteat Yorm LVUAS Py
Borrower Rltialy bers: '
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H

%

i,

is Agreexnent shall be of no force or offest, and no sotion will be tken by Loan Servicer to cease
canecnon and foreciosure aetivities relating to the Loan, unless and waril Loag Serviter has received this
Ag\:emmt, fully exesmed and imitinled by Borower and any Non-Obhgcrr Mortgagers, along with the
Mod Stary Paymm:. in the form of & eashier’s chegk oz certified fimds, no larer then September. 19, 2008,
Thic Anesament s ast sansidersd “ocaived” ‘~y Loan Scmoa' uzdess and unt:l it hes beep defiversd to
ﬁ::.:. Servicer at 4830 Regewr Bivd, Sufie 190, Irving, TX 75065, end lawmally date sumped
Furihsmecve, this fessesen shall 3¢ of oo force or eifowt U Borrowar fies = bankruptey yastien peior 4

san Servicer's resaipt of this Agretment

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the undersigned bave safthcﬁ'hxndsmas of the dare written below,
American Hore Mortaage Servicing, In;.
By:
Borrower
r Borrower
Romower
Beguwer
NON-OBLIGOR MORTGAGORS
For purposes of this Agreement, the wndersigued mucthmws;‘ﬂ:cym “Nea-Obligor Morigagers” {that is,

this term 5 defined to mean §) sigantories on the Security Instrument but not obligated on ths Nota or (i) persons
ot obhgatodonﬂm}fomhm added 1o titls on the Property after the origination of the above-referencad Loan). By
his/her/their signeture(s) below oa this Agreement, ti¢ undetsignied Non-Obligor Mortgagers sskmowledge 20d
agrae(x}thathmfherfthw interest i the Property was subject to the Secuity Instrmment &nd remains subject to the
Semxnylnsmnnmasmochﬁedbyth:sAgmment,md (y) that he/sherhey wre bownd by all of the terms aad
conditions of this Agreement, excaps to the extems that such terms and conditons pectain to sy promise or
cbligetion|to pay Loan Sarvicer er Note Holder any amount.

|

Acknowledged and sgreed Duta;

; Non-Obiigor Mortgagor
Aci:owi%ged and agreed 1: - ) Lrate:
! tion-Qbliger Maorguenr
§
!
i
|
l
LOAN MOMS!CAT}ON AGREEMENT (60 Moot Frend 5% mSingle Fanrily—aBEMST lustramest Borg | {BAS/08)  (Peged}

Borrower :mln!.: bere:
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Loan Modification Agreement

Schedule A

Name of Bon‘ow;er(s):

Lozr Number. EEEa

|

P.014

BESCRIFTION OF TOTAL AMCUNT DUE

TCTAL DUE

Current Prinelpei Batance

Plus Delinqueminteresi Through 08/30/2008!

Plus Advaness Made for Atomeys' Fees/Costs/inspections

Flus Escrow {lax and insurance) Shortage (including escrow advances
goplicable)

Plus Unpaid Laté Charges

Plus Non-Sufficient Funds (retumed check fees)

Less Suspense Balance (funds held that will ceduce amount ewed)
New Principal Balance :

|
! |
l
1

ot il

New Mod Payment Amount Effective From (8/01/2008 Through
077312013 !

Principal and Interest (P&I) or Interest Oaly

Monthiy Escrow|Payment (for Taxes and Insurance)™

1

Total Payment Applicable Duting Mod or Interest Only Period™

* Hyourioan i3 an ARM, this mod psyment amoutit will be in effact theough the payment

dut ofs the firgt

Change Data that ceours after 0TR2013, *
- Ino!u}dcc eotimated smount for the monthly eserow paymont {which i gubjoct
change}.

Borrowers' Initials




AMERICAN HOME MORTGAGE Serviting, Inc.

mnm.ﬂcn AGRECMINT
Be Laan No, - ) :
Praperty Address SRR COLUMBUS OH 43229
Borrower(s) SRR
This Forbearance Agreement A,gmmem"},.is made and eorared Into a9 of 12/1572008, by
and batwmen Ammericen Home mgageSozvmag.Im.(hwmﬁw *Lender™) and SENEESE

HAMMILL (bereinsfiey collectivaly referred 1o 23 “Bamowes™),

&ECM‘A!.S:

Bomowers executed tha corain pramissory note and ami riders or 2ddenda thereto (herelirafier the
"Now™) and doadofm«dmw by (hereinnfier “Security Inmmiment’™) on or
aboul , in themm amaunt of UBD Sm (ereinafior collectively refemxd to s
“Loan™ ar "Loans Documents™): and

L] ) T
Thel.ounxsmmdby ty!mmmmchmas.tﬁep wrmwniyknownas-
WS COLUMBUS OH 43229 (hercinafianreferred to a5 Pmpmy

Bnmwam hve dcfmlwd in maklng dmrpaymmtswtéaﬂtc Lnanmddﬂhctommndy that defanlt by
bringing the Lotn current; and

uudutnsmmdtbammnmmrﬁmoi pursuit of the 1egal remedies svallablo st ox s regultof
Borrowers' eforementiyned doliralt n%.mn.pxwded hat the Bomowers exscuie and fulfill fie
terns of this Agreemsot

ACREEMENT:

NOW THEREFORE, mcensrde:mofﬂwr.mdnfe pumzkofns!m!mmdasmdcﬂh:

mgnnocnmmfsrchmmmwosmmdmlu{m aforementioned dafilt, mnd
ﬂ:romergoodandvawm pousidcmation, mmuﬂsnfﬁckngcfwbxch is horeby scknowletped,
the Borrowess, intending to be gallybmﬁmdmmd.m , ovenant end agres ss follows:

—
g
:
2
g

American Home Morigage Seevicing e, 4600 Regant Blvd., Sulle 200,
fring, TX TS063-17340 ¥ (77} 804-31DD' Fux 8854358113

1271772008  3:35PM (GMT-05:00)



Loan Numbar SRS 0¥ -

L. Reshals: The above recitads are troe and corrett and incorporatod hetein by reference

2, Contmetus) Dis Date: Betrowirs afe it defndt iy y rizking thelr monihly pyrmonts under tho
Loan Doaumeants and (he contracinal dus date of the Loan sy of G date of tis Agreemeni is
gg;gmeos (that ic. the last installment paid by Borrawer's wes the one which came dus on

1/2008)

3 Amgz:AsofthcdatecfmrsAgwum méwmlmmrymhdng:hnhmmnt ’

including, bat not imited to, patirest, seensed late
admdgg. wmw mﬂm:ﬁme fees and costs, is § 5966.18 ermner referred
to a5 the “Arrearage™). The Atrearage iz ilemized it Exhifbit A, atiachod hereto ad made a
panbmofﬂisamlupmedw}‘ tufﬂnfuﬂmmlofd:aﬁmagebyBomwm
fmaw:mgsﬁofgz gmmmvn‘ilfnn nm@m%clcxmoit&sn
gresment and bring e =a:n-.m.az ar munihly payments will roum
Amz; in Exhibit A 23 the b ths!cmn ‘htﬂw c
set ot tA D mm to cumont i anG
payment good thrugh the due thereon, mmmwmw‘ywmm
¢ bed’:umg; nwym%‘wmum This incrzase may, for
exarapl monthly charges, 1] prges, which eontinee to econue pirsoant
mmclz'mmmmmmc ey of thik o eat becanse the Loan i .
delinguent, Ofher possiblis reasons foc a highet total w mgaverummnnmcwam
.ﬁwwnﬂﬂymmduchemnrhw&mm(m&dmbw j,
et SdeS A gresaman. s v cort Sy b I B 3 o s of o
o0 er e duc m or
ohmswumm%m*mmmmmmw

4. lazrused Mmthb?mchmwmmuﬂm All Logn ymmspummmme
following terms and conditions: P

a, a prerequisiee 10 the validity of this #it, 8 down paynent in the amount of §
1975.00 et be received by Lender ng fater than 5:00 PM, Pocific Smodard Tims,
1162008 ehthar: (i) via ovansghr::ml somd 1o [he attention of Ametosn Home
Murigage Serele ms?gg;. an Elvd, Suits 200, Trving, TX 75038-1730 in the
form of puntaniced aﬁnmdmdmrmmcyud ) made

210 Americsn Hmmn@?s«wdng.lnc.m‘@ Maoney Gram, recsive

cede 4513 of Westem Unlon “Quick Cotlect™ to Code City; OFTION, Code Stne: Ca.
"5 During the term of this Bmowalmﬂmhmmeémmﬂﬂypﬂmmw
in the amount of § 2314, .Wuhbcbéuﬂwfnuwguiunmh!ymm

Loan Documeants phig 3 pro rata portion:of the ther
hmmfwmph;aspfi:c ?symf).wm recelved Eﬁcﬂm
lnt:rt‘haas 00 P.M. Pacific Standard Time, commencing on 12/1 72008 und .
%mmemamfmmawuymmm g
ozn kmﬁdnn%ﬁﬂ&m&uﬂhwem madea
Bmmmsnmstmd the Plan Paynwen ¢ither {f) in the form of
ﬂmda(mﬁadchwk.mhmacbccko:mm nnder) mnde payabls  American
Haome Morigage alnc..und wde]rmudhmderammmﬁ
Moztpage Semuing. Bhvd,, Suite ZWTX 760381730 or
(n}waMmem.mcdweodc#ﬁﬁorWﬁmU ek Collect 1o Code City;
OP'ﬂ , Code State: CAL

(3 wm&m&chm&mmtmdxlsAmsha]lb-clmtymhd
wimmeabuva-mfmmdmwm be applied 1o any arsounts
outstanding e the Loan, including fm-m&m in tho order and proportion decraed
approprialc by Lendes,

d  Astoeschand every mrmmmmm tme shnll be sirictly of the
mcnccamlhmshnﬁag:nmgmp:

Argerizan Home Morigape Servickg Inc., 4800 Regent Bivd., Sulle 200,
“leving, TX 750634730 *{677) 34-3100"Fax §86-235-2113

1271772088 3:39PM (GMT-05:00)



Losn Numbert SSRGS ' 04

5. Cellestion Effons o Continue: This Agresmen: :han bcofnbsoluw&ymfmoram aod no octlan
wilt be tiken by Lender s oexer callection setivitids adior posipone the. foreclenms o tale of the
?mc:v Gl applicable), unles and wer Landor hag mosived otk this Agreement, fally exocuied by

the Borrowers, mnd sy requined down paywent In the formand b the mener as outfined in
subpcagrash 41 nbove no batoy tha 12/1672008 This Agrestnont is rot considered “received” by
Lmdxuﬂmand\mmsthasbmmm JM by Lender and dolivered 1o
Americen Home Mocgags Serviciog, loc. 4600 ?zm Budtn 204, brving, TX 75038-1730, or
suecassfally Ruxed to 886-435-8113 Fexed copy of the Agrecment muy be used for any plaposcs
us if it were the oriploal,

6, Lato Chargesand Additions] Feoy and Costs; Tnerencs in Plra Pryment;

& Un}m by state law, tatecharges, o set forth o the Nole. shall cominue o
gthctumofthu mtmﬂlmcbmuﬁwlmnubmgk
mzy be in additon 10 (and

m!sﬁmﬁﬁ%)&u?&nmmbmma(wbe Bk vo stlefy the terms and
conditions of this o L%mtskmamm
acc.mdmhw renmcummdh:g et
ﬂwlmchargem:gdﬂt& - d

b Additioosl fees, eenhhngwﬁnmnmlhmemyetmwied
tourincnmdbywxdcmrdnbn :hc:(.mmm butnmhmmdw
approtsal and broker peioe oplnlon fes, broperty inspect]
wﬂﬁscm'mwwmﬂhmwm :xpcﬁﬂ.

ction fhes (bereinaftor, togeter with lare reforred to a3
‘W%ﬁ.mmmwmrhnhmmdmbcp&ﬁy
Borpwery in ordor to fully ssisfy the s med conditions of this Agreement and

[y

& m] and‘% Tute diseveti b{mmmw”umm mbgm ‘:dw%mm
scle and ebsolute mxy
upen written notioe & Lﬁumhnm.wummwwm&hgwam
curreat by tha fingd Paymu&ndmunda&whmt.

1. Aﬁ)mbhm*dm,!mmln!hn?qmbkchmwmmbiemmmmmuhc
Pl Paymenl mey be sublect W fnarease pursuant to infervst iz adjustmente as dictated by -
ﬂwmucfthe.ﬂoit.lf Plon Payreent i not increased degpite an imlorest rate inprense
puzsuant to the Note, the suems scented but unpaid dog 1o the iaterest zate increase
{‘Ad&m«uISmDu:Fcrmchanat')makobopmdmwhsfy&»manﬂ
cerditians of this Agrearsent and bring the Loan curont, 1E the intevest mte is sdjustad
dawuwwmﬂwwoﬂh:mu,me?hnmymmtmllmtdm bmmymphn
will he spplied 10 the Atresmge. In crderdo payment by Barrowers of sneb Addilona)
SumDuePuRateChmggmdinlmduamt:mﬂabwmdwm.thc?lmhmt
ammm? ray be subject to ncrente, upon writfon notice by Lender to Borrowers, toan
gmmnemrytu‘bmgmLmnmmbymcﬁnml&npa}mtdmdamwm:
grecmend

3. mmnmalmcuzmmmmsmmmmmm
prarsuznl to $ho toreoy of e Losn Doguments,to esisblish an fmpound seeorms with Lender
&rpa)mdmmammee,wshoﬂdﬁemnmyammbmmmmnhﬁng
!nmdwt Wtwapdo&cmmmq,, Plan Payment may

merease aocordingly. the monthly 'buummmymmgmpmmdwmm
decresse purstant 19 & periodis cacrow analysis, the Plan Peyment will nat decrense, but any
uﬁ:ﬂﬂheappbadmmw;amwwmmmbymﬁmy

nal s due porsent (o M indrease in the monthly sserow contribotion, and in
Londers sole and ahanture disumﬁm,the?hn Pgyment amourt nmay be subjoct o increse,
upon written notics by Leuder to Bawrowers, to an anount nacessary 1o bring the Loan
cambyﬁcfml?hn?mmmmmﬂmAmL

9. Credit Reporing: Undl such tims 05 the Loan i brought current {¢ither by muocessfis]
completion of the teyms of this A or s fump wur payment of the Atrearage), the
Enan remains dedinguent and the o7 must continus to xport the Lean ag dalinquent to
the cradit reporting agencies to which l.:ndcrmpom

Amarican Hame Mortgage Servicing Inc., 4800 Raﬁem Bivd., Suita 200,
iving, TX T5083-173D * {87T) 304-3100" Fax BRS-195-8113

P

Do 1271772008  3:33PM (GMT-05:00)
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Coon Numbert ENEAREE O

14, No Deferser; Relunre: By their ovecution and dedivery 1 Lender of this Agreament, the
. Berrowers acknowledge thet the Ameerage is tbe Bomowers’ full responsipility and was
preducad sdely by the ectlons or inpetions of the Bemowess, Furtharmore, Bamowerd agres
{hat they have np defongs, soto(T or countézelaim related 0o the Loan or the Property, ot 10
Leader®s activities relsting to the Loan ordbe Propenty, snd Borrowess heteby vohmiarily
relexse, discharge and afmes not 10 sut Lender for any and Al dleims, demends, conmuvessies,
demages, aclicns, causes of actien, liabilitias, tights, coss (induding sttormey fees and courl
and Brigation costs end expenses), indermnites; obligations or losses of any kind or nature
whatsoevar, whether af s thme kndwn or unknown, for ot by reason of axy act, amirsion,
svent, tranmsction, matter or cages, arising from or 1o e Loan, & onpimation of the
Loan e the servicing of the Losn, of wry Gapute orising < relating o thy Loan, the
origlnation of the Loun or the sepvicing of the Loxn, or any of the {hels upon which any such N
divpote is based. .
15, Adviteaf : The Borrowers witrant sodirepresent 143 in exerining this Settdement
Agzenron: ey reliad legal sdvice fitan the atiorocy of thatr ahetes; that this
Ammmmwwwammdm&mm.wmmm
{including risky, cempBeations, and oasts) bave been Imlxmhmodeommby
et antorney; and Barmowets fully understand the teems of this Agreemient, -
16. Lom Boexmears: All af Botrowers’ rights und Eesponsibilities under, md all of the terms and
canditioes of ths Notw £nd Security Instrument, shal] remein in full foroe and efiect except as

exprossly modified by this Agreement, Nothing eenained ip this 1 ghell be
mmhmgewfmwntmﬁmmgr‘ i sn‘%wpwqrs
wader the Loan Docoments: to recoves any som due vaxdor the tonny af the Nofe, inchuding
any Arrearsge and Additional Ceats, :

17. Severability:To the extent that auy word, phrase, chause, or sentéace of this Apreement shall
be foumd o be Hlegal or imenforesable Tor ey resson, soch woed, phtese, chruse, or santence
shall be modified or delotod in suth & manner 50 82 1o make &ie Agresment, 85 wo modificd,
kylmﬁmcwww.mmmwmmmm
deletion melcrially diminigh the henefis of this Agreement 1o eithier Londer, in il sole
disererion eod slection, or Boerowess, in fieir poks diseretion sod election, the Agreement
shall, afhxmiﬂzunoﬁc:gmhymdmhgpwxbmmm.hofmﬁnww
-effect and the eelstionship of Lender and Borrowers shali be entirely govensed by the
provigions of the Loen Documerts, .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ﬁwundetsignudha%aweam&thiségrmmtmb:mﬁasofﬁw
date fivet above written, .

Drted: 42352 ;Z:QZ Dated:

RORROWERS MUST SIGN:AND RETURN ALL PAGES

. .

American Homy Morgapa Serviciag Iag., 4600 Ragent Bivd,, Suits 200,
Indng, T T50B3.1730 ~ (877) 304-3100" Faxt B66-435-8118

|
H
!
1

1271772008 3:39PM (GMT-05:00)



Loan Numb e SNEETIGE . 1ot -G

EXHIEIT A
Borromor Koo : GRMRBENRNNRED
Reipstaseroent Quoteifor Leun (NINER
Good Throogh Date 1 32232908

+ 1
2 Poyments Due & 53624 : S 18248
2 Pyyments Doe @ 935.13 H 5187026 -
Foreclosumy Fees and Costs H $ 1971.00
Gther Foex H $ 904.60
Late Charges t § 157.84
Tatn! Servicer Reinsisioment Avoant . ¢ 8 5P66.18

TN WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned hawhave cansed this Agreement & be oxcguted as ofthe
date first above written, A |

Dated: 4&;42 gégf Dated:

BORROWERS MUST S1GN AND RETURN ALL PAGES

Avoexican Home Mongage Servising ing., 4600 Rogent Bivd., Suite 208,
laving, T T5063.9730  (877)304-3100" Fex85a-435-8113
H

i 1271772008 3:39PM (GMT-05:00)



Loon Numbors EREEEREN 10F SH_=

EXEIBIT B

FLAN PAYMENT DETANLS for Lo - UITEKINNNS

Due Dyts Payment Amount [Term

Deposit 112/1672008 $ 1975.00 )

H 1271743008 $2314.580  [RIAmount; § 5966181

2 01/12/2009 3231458 Payhent 593513 3] $280530

3 21772009 $2314.58] |LmigChorpe [ $39ds) 30 81183

Total $ 6943.74 Pesp Jogp 39601 3 $2880

: ' ol § 801875

| Losy Dopotit : 5 1975.00
Tod Pian - 36M375
Installments:

BORROWERS MUST SION ANDIRETURN ALL PAGES

4

RNOTICE TO BORROWERS »

Plcmobcw.ndﬂmmcwmlﬁmdnnmisﬂxhibw‘ﬁis ;ﬂybnedbnmmlmmpnms

thmnumam:mnmmhmdbm*wﬂlbemw? mrcﬁngzomnbov:

sikecuke, Should reinatatemend be made exrly, certain of the but not yet sccroad chopes
I‘mlnmdmlb:ngmmcnm that

(emhas.mmnil:,:he late chargss ead inpcetion
has not yet 2 the Hime or reinstatament), will not be inclugded in the amount nacessery 1o
relnstons, Thes, should you daslre mmfnmmﬁr pleamcull(%'?‘f)-ﬁﬂfwlﬂ()mgﬂ,an

mnaznluncm Ggme.

.

o Pasgioh o Aot i i ”m“‘“m“”“”?““;‘“mv‘“‘ﬁmﬁm“)m

T o on intorest rite sen Pora &nd), or an
Increase in the eserow (tax or insutancs) mmpmmmwmmi {svo Paragraph § of

Agreement) must be paid befare the Lopn is ﬁxﬂymmdpumtmmmm.m
?;cng,‘t:?hf‘i:mlz’h%!gymm « Cf 20 eigly reinttatement «may &iffer signifigantly from the amoumt set

(=) Eﬂﬁb

The component sams (.5, Axrearage, Payment, Latc:charge, ex.), which together comprise the Tataf

" on this Exhibit B, rather than beng y disariburted in the plan payments ere appliad as permined by

Parngraph 4c of the Agroement in &n urd:r <Lender, such ns,ﬁxmmple. paynzat of
eccrued foes and costs prior to applicetion to OMM.

IN WITNESS WREREQF, the undursigned hasfheve caused this Agresment 1o be executed 26 of the
dars first above written, ‘

Amefican Homa Morkyage Serviting g, 4880 Regeri Bvd,, Sulle 200,
nving, TX 75083-1730  (B77) 304-3100~ Fax 586-435-8113
H

I 1271772008 3:39PM (GMT-05:

00>



Loon Numbors KRN ' 104

_Bomowurs seknowledge that they have read snd undzrstand that above notice.,

. B 1 - _"Bomower

Dinted;| éz%:f 2’522 £ :Dnlcd:

BORROWERS MUST SIGN AND RETURN ALL PAGES

.

Amardean Home Martgage Servicing Inc., 4600 Rogont Bivd,, Sulte 200,
Inving, TX T8083-1730 * {B77) 3043100 Fax 885-436-8113

H !

122492220000 R R0PEM
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AMERICAN HOME MORTGAGE SERVICING, INC.

SECURITY RETENTION AGREEMENT
{Providing for a Flced Interest Rate}

Re:  Loan Nu:;zber
Propenty Address:
Borrower(s):

This Security Retention Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement™), is made and entered into
as of August 1, 2009 (the “Effective Date™) by and between American Home Morigage
Serviclng, Ing. (hereinafter “Loan Serviver”) and

(hereinafler'collectively referred to as “Borrowers™),

RECITALS:

Borrowars executed that certain promissory note (hereinafter “Note™) and mortgage,
deed of trust or deed to secure debt (hersinafier “Securlty Instrument™) on or about
October 28, 2005, in the original prinolpal amount of U.S $104,000.00, (hereinafter
callectively referred 10 as “Losn" or “Loan Decuments™); and

Borrowers secured the Loan by virtue of the Security Instrument, covering the premises
commonly known as QEENRIRSRDNOWRENEINNG (1:crcincfer referred to as
“Property"); and

Borrowers debis have been discharged pursusnt to a Chapter 7 bankruptey, but Loan
Servicer retained and reserved iis dight under the Security Instrument to forecloge on the
Property; and '

Borrowers have informed Loan Servicer that it wighes to remain In the Property and
continue to make payments on the Loan; and

Loan Servicer has stated that it will forego pursuit of the legal remedies available to it,
provided that Borrowers execute and fulfitl the terms of this Agreement,

AGREEMENT:

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the Loan Servicer forgoing pursuit of its
legal remedies under the Secwrity Instrument relsting to foreclosure and sale of the
Property, and for other good and valusble consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, Borrowers understand, acknowledge, covenant and agree
ag follows: ‘

SRA Fieed ’ LMOG000
Page | of 6 V12 043008}




1. Reeitnls: The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated hereln by
reference.

2. No Personal Lirbllity: Since Borrowers’ debts have previeusly been

) discharged pursuani to a Chapier 7 bankruptey and since Borrowers did not
sign an agreempptyreaffiring the Loan, this Agreement Is not to be construied
as an attempt to collect a deb! from Borrowers pgfsonally. Borrowers
understand and Loan Servicer. acknowledges that Loan Servicer has no right
and no Intention 10 erjfurce the Loan agalnst Borrowers and that Loan

- Servicer's only recourse, If the Loan is not current as set forth in the Loan

Dacuments and this Agreement, is to foreclose on the Properiy.

3. Forbearance by Loan Servicer: Even though Borrowers are no longer
personally lisble to repay the Loan, Loan Servicer reserves its right under the
Security Instrument to foreclose on the Property, which Bomrowers ecknowledge
and agree they pledged as security for the Loan. Borrowers hereby request that
Loan Servicer forbear from pursuing foreclosure and enter into this Agrecment,
which specifies the steps they must take in order to ellow them to retain the
Property. In consideration of Horrowers® agreement to abide, and only for so long
#s they continue to sbide, by all of the terms and conditions of this Agresment,
Loan Servicer hereby agrees to forbear from foreclosing on the Property,

4. Payments: In consideration of Loan Servicer forbearing from foreclosing and
aflowing Bogpwers to rémain in the PropertyeBorrowers must make monthly
Property retention payments (*Payment” or “faymeuts”) in the amounts and by
the dates, and in accordance with the terms and conditions, as set forth in this
Agresment, )

a. As of the Effcotive Dals, the amount payeble under the Note and the
* Security Instrument is U.8, $114,699.31 (the “New Principal Balsnce'™,
consisting of the wnpatd amount{s) loased to Borrowers by Lender plus
any accrued and unpald interest and other amounts capitalized es set forth
in Schedule “A,” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

b. Borrowers shall pay an earnest money payment (the “Deposit™) in the
amount of 1.8, $1,350.00, widch Deposit must be received by Loan
Servicer no lster than 5:00 P.M. Bastern Time, QN/A), eithter: (i} via
overnight mail sent to the attention of American Home Mortgage
Servicing, Inc., 6501 Irvine Center D, Irvine CA 92618, ATIN: DD-
HPO, in the form of guaranteed funds (certified check, cashiers checle or
money order) made payable to American Homs Morigege Servicing, Inc.,
or (i) via Western Union “quick collect” to Code City: Option, Code
State; CA.

e, The Deposit shall be deducted from the New Principal Balance, for & total
outstanding balence on the Loan of U.S, $113,349.31 (the “Reduced
Principal Balanee™),
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Interest shall be charged on the Reduced Principel Balgnce at the yearly
rate of 5.25%, from the Effective Date until November 1, 2035 (the
“Matarity Date”),

Borrowers shall meke Payments of principal and interest (plus any
smounts due for taxes and insurance as sei forth in Schedule “A") in the
amount.of U.S, $563.69. All Payments must be recelved by Loan
Servicer, clearly marked with the above-referenced Loan number, no later
than 5:00 P.M. Eaatern Time, beginning on September 1, 2009, and
continuing on the same date of each end every suceeeding month until the
Reduced Prineipal Balance and interest are paid in full. 1fthe Loanisan
adjustable-rate mortgage (“ARM") foan and Bomower receives an ARM
adfustment notice prior to the Payment beginning date Indicated in the
preceding sentence, Borrowers should ignore such niotice and make
Payments In accordance with this Agreement. If on the Manuity Date,
Borrowers still owe amounts under the Loan, as amended by this

. Agreement, Botrowers will pay these amounts in full on the Maturity

Date.

Payments are subject to increase at any time pursuant to paragraphs 5 and
6 below, .

As {0 each and every Payment made under this Agreement, fime shafl be
strictly of the egsence and there shall be no grace period.

5. Additional Fees and Costs; Inerease in Payment:
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Additional fees, expenses and charges relating to the Loan that have not
been bilied to or incurred by Loan Servicer or debited to the Loan account
£s of the Effective Date (including but not limited to late fees, appraisal
and broker price opinion fees, property inspection fees, Loan Servicer
advanges for payment of Botrowers® trxes and/or insurance, attomey fees
and expenses, collection fees and any other expenses incurred by Loan
Servicer to protect its security interest in the Property), or clericsi errors
later discovered in the calculation of the Payments, (all of which fees,
expenaes, charges and ervors, together with lato charges, are collectively
referted to us “Additlonal Costs™), are not included in the Payment
amount and must be peid by Borrowers in prder to fully satisfy the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, .

In arder to ensura payment by Barrowers of such Additional Costs, Loan
Servicer may, upon written notice by Loan Servicer 1o Borrowers and in
L.oan Servicer's sole and absolute discretion, either; (i) demand immediate
payment in full of the Additional costs, (i) add such Additional Costs to
the Reduced Principal Balance, or (iif) add a proreta amount of the
Additlonal Costs to the Payment in an amaunt necessary either to pay the
Additional Costs by a certain date as specified in such written notice or to
pay the Loan off by the Maturity Date.
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6, Taxes and Hazard Insurance; Tucrease in Payments: Should Loan Servicer
require Borrowers, pursuani to the terms of the Loan Documents, to establish an
impound account with Loan Servicer for payment of taxes and insurance, or
should the monthly contribution to any existing impound account increase
pursuent to a periodio escrow analysls, the Payments may increase aecordingiy.
Should the monthly contribution to any existing impound account decreaye
pursuant to a periodic escrow analysis, the Payments will decrease sccordingly,

7. . Effect of Agreement; Forbearance: This Agreement shall be of abselutely no
Jorce ar effect, and no action will be faken by Loan Servicer to forbear from
Joreclosing on the Property, or to posipone the foreclesure or sale of the
Property (if applicable), wnless and urtil Loan Servicer has received both this
Agreement, fully execated by Borrowers, and any required Deposit in the form
and in the manner as outfined in subparagraph 45 above by no later than $:00
P.M. Eastern Time, July 8, 2009., This Agreement is not considered “recelved”
by Loan Servicer unless and #tl It has beon internally date stamped. by Loan
Servicer and delivered in hand to The Home Retantlon Team at 6501 {rvine
Ceater Dr, Irvine CA 92618, ATTN: DD-HFPO.

8, Material Breach and Termination of Agrecment: Borrowers shall be
considered to be in material breach of this Agreement and this Agreement shell
automatically terminate under any of the following circumslances;

a. Borpwers fail to strictly comply with sny of the terms of this Agresment
or the Loan Documents as revised by this Agreement,

b. The Property is abandoned or left vacant for more than sixty (60) days.

¢. Bomowers transfer any interest n the Property without Loan Servicer's
prior written consent,

9. Lffect of Termination: If this Agreement is termingted due to material breach as
set forth above, the Loan Serviosr shall be entitled to pursus its remedies pursuant
to the terrns and conditions of the Security Instrument es if this Apreement had
never existed,

18, No Defenges: Borrowers agree that, except £s set forth in paragraph 2 above,
they have no defense, setoff or counterclaim related to the Loan or the Property,
or to Loan Servicer's ectivities reluting to the Loan or the Property.

11, Advice of Aftorney: Borrowers warrant and represent that: (i) in executing this
Agreement they have relied upon iegal advice from the attomey of their choice,
{ii) this Agreemont hes been read by Borrowers and such attorney, and its
censequences {including risks, complications, and costs) have been completely
explained to Borrowers by that attorney, and (jii) Borrowers fully understand the
terms of this Agreement, '
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12, Loan Documents: All of the terms and conditions of the Security Instrument
shall remaln in full force and effect except as exprossly modified by this
Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to impair the
Security Instrument or affect or impair Loan Servicer's rights or powers under the

. Security Instrament to recover any sum due under the terms of this Agreement,
{ncluding any Additionat Costs. Borrowers will comply with all covenants,
egreements, ent requirements of the Seourlty Instrument; however, the following
terms and provisions are forever canceled, null and void, as of the Bffective Date:

a. All terms and provisions of the Note end Security Instrument (if any)
providing for, implementing, or relating to, any change or adjustment in
the rate of Interest payable under the Note.

b, All terms and provisions of any adjustable rate rider, or other instrument
or document (if any) that i3 affixed to, wholly or partially incorporated
into, or is part of, the Note or Security Instrument and thet contains any
such terms and provisions as those referred to in (2) above.

13, Notice: Any notice by Loan Servicer to Borrowers under this Agreemerd shall be
deemed given if delivered by regular, certified or overnight mall to the Property
addresy as It appesrs in this Agreement.

14, Severability: To the oxtent that eny word, phrase, clause, or sentence of this
Agreement shell be found to be illegal or unenforcesble for any reason, such
word, phrase, clause, or sentence shall be modified or deleted in such a roanner so
a3 to make the Agreement, as so modified, legal and enforceable under applicable
iaw, provided that, should such modification or deletion taterially diminish the
benefit of this Agreement to either Loan 8ervicer, in its sole discretion and
clection, or Borrowers, in their sole discretion and election, the Apreement shall,
only after wriften notice given by the electing party to the other party, be of no
force or effect and the relationship of Loan Servicer and Borrowers shall be
enlirely govemed by the provisions of the Loan Documents.

NOTICE TO BORROWERS WITH ADJUSTABLE-RATE LOANS: For Borrowers
with an adjustable-rate Joan, please resd this notice carefilly. In accordance with
subparagraghs 12(a) end (b) of this Agreement, you {Borrowers) understand that the
Loan fa modified from an edjustable-rate loan to a fixed-rate loan. An adjustable-rate Joan
differs from a- fixed-rate Josn. With a fixed-rate loan, the interest rate steys the same
during the life of the loan, With an adiustable-rate loan, the imterest mte changes
periodicaily, in relation to an index snd & mergin, and Payments may go up or down
mccordingly, IF INTEREST RATES DECREASE, AN AINUSTABLE-RATE
LOAN COULD BE LESS EXPENSIVE OVER A LONG PERIOD THAN A
FIXED.RATE LOAN. YOU UNDERSTAND THAT BY MODIFYING THIS
LOAN TO A FIXED-RATE LOAN, YOU ARE FOREGOING THIS POTENTIAL
ADVANTAGE, . ,
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N WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned hashave oansed this Agreement b ‘be
executed as of the date first above written.

) Bnﬁwcr: Borrower:

Dated: Datsd:
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Loan Modificatlon Agreament
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Loar Madification Agreament
Schedufe A
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